AGENDA
REGULAR MEETING OF THE LOS ANGELES MEMORIAL COLISEUM COMMISSION

Thursday, April 25, 2019 at 2:30 p.m.

Coliseum Commission Board Room
3911 South Figueroa Street, Los Angeles, CA 90037

In compliance with Government Code Section 54957.5, nonexempt writings that are distributed to all, or a majority of all, of the Coliseum Commission members
by any person in connection with a matter subject to discussion or consideration at an open meeting of the Coliseum Commission, are disclosable public records
under the California Public Records Act. These public records may be viewed at 3911 S. Figueroa Street, Los Angeles, CA 90037, at the web page
http:/lamcc.lacounty.gov/Meetings or at the scheduled meeting. In addition, if you would like a copy of any record related to an item on the agenda, please
contact Ms. LaChelle Smitherman, Ismitherman@bos.lacounty.gov, (213) 893-0202.

(POSTED: Monday, April 22, 2019 at 2:30 p.m.)

MEMBERS:
County of Los Angeles Ms. Janice Hahn, President
Mr. Mark Ridley-Thomas
Ms. Anita DeFrantz, Alternate
City of Los Angeles Mr. Solomon Rivera, Vice President

Mr. Curren D. Price, Jr.

State of California Ms. Rosalind Wyman

Mr. Mark E. Pulido, Alternate

State Senate Ms. Holly J. Mitchell

State Assembly

STAFF:

Chief Administrative Officer & Secretary
Treasurer

Acting Controller

Co-Counsel

Co-Counsel

Co-Counsel

At the discretion of the Los Angeles Memorial Coliseum Commission (“Commission”), all items appearing in
this Agenda, whether or not expressly listed for action, may be deliberated and may be subject to action by

the Commission.

1 2Ex-officio (non-voting)

LAMCC Regular Meeting — Thursday, April 25, 2019

Mr. Reginald B. Jones-Sawyer, Sr. 2

Mr. Al Naipo

Mr. Joseph Kelly

Ms. Arlene Barrera
Ms. Noreen Vincent
Mr. Michael Custodio
Ms. Sonia L. Chan



OPEN SESSION
1. CALL TO ORDER
2. ROLL CALL
3. PRESIDENT’S COMMENTS
4. GENERAL PUBLIC COMMENT
5. APPROVAL OF MINUTES OF MEETING OF MARCH 28, 2019
6. CHIEF ADMINISTRATIVE OFFICER’S REPORT (Receive and file)
7. COLISEUM COMMISSION FINANCIAL REPORT (Receive and file)
8. LOS ANGELES MEMORIAL COLISEUM GENERAL MANAGER’S REPORT (Receive and file)

A. Event operations
B. Coliseum planned and in-progress projects

9. UPDATE ON PUBLIC INTEREST EVENT — WALK FOR WISHES 2019 (Receive and file)
10. UPDATE FROM LOS ANGELES FOOTBALL CLUB (Receive and file)
CLOSED SESSION
CS-1 CONFERENCE WITH LEGAL COUNSEL - ANTICIPATED LITIGATION
(GOVERNMENT SECTION 54956.9) (Discussion and possible action)

OPEN SESSION

11. ADJOURNMENT
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NOTICE: All meetings of the Coliseum Commission are open to the public. A member of the public may
address the Commission on any Agenda item, and a request to address the Commission must be
submitted in person prior to the start of the meeting. The Commission may limit the public input on any
item, based on the number of people requesting to speak and the business of the Commission. In addition,
a member of the public has the right to address the Commission on items of interest which is within the
subject matter jurisdiction of the Commission during the Public Comment portion of the Agenda.

As a covered entity under Title Il of the Americans with Disabilities Act, the Los Angeles Memorial Coliseum
Commission does not discriminate on the basis of disability and upon request, will provide reasonable
accommodation to ensure equal access to its programs, services and activities. Sign language interpreters,
assistive listening devices, or other auxiliary aids and/or services may be provided upon request. To ensure
availability of services, please make your request at least three (3) business days prior to the meeting you
wish to attend by contacting Ms. LaChelle Smitherman at (213) 893-0202.

Persons having matters before the Los Angeles Memorial Coliseum Commission should read the following
notice in connection with prohibited contributions to members of this agency.

NOTICE TO PERSONS HAVING MATTERS BEFORE THIS
AGENCY REGARDING PROHIBITED CONTRIBUTIONS

Any person to a proceeding before this Commission involving a license, permit, or other entitlement
(including all entitlements for land use, contracts -- other than competitively bid labor or personal
employment contracts -- and all franchises) must disclose on the record any contributions in excess of
$250.00 to any elected or appointed officer of the Commission, including alternates, made within the
preceding 12 months by the party, or his or her agent. The California contributions limitations of
Government Code Section 84308 also prohibit contributions in excess of $250.00 for three months
following the date of any final decision rendered by the Commission in such proceeding. Commissioners
who have received such contributions within the past 12 months may not participate in the proceeding.
Also, Commissioners may not receive such contributions while a matter affecting a contributor is pending.

Si requiere servicios de traduccion, favor de notificar a la oficina 3 dias de trabajo (72 horas) antes del
evento. Si necesita ayuda con esta agenda, por favor llame a nuestra oficina al (213) 893-0202.
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ATTACHMENT 5.1

MINUTES OF REGULAR MEETING OF
THE LOS ANGELES MEMORIAL COLISEUM COMMISSION

Thursday, March 28, 2019
1. CALL TO ORDER

The regular meeting of the Los Angeles Memorial Coliseum Commission
(the “Commission”) was held in the Coliseum Commission Board Room on
Thursday, March 28, 2019, and was called to order at 2:40 p.m. by
President HAHN.

2. ROLL CALL

PRESENT: Ms. Janice Hahn, President
Mr. Solomon Rivera, Vice President
Mr. Mark Ridley-Thomas (3:10 p.m.)
Mr. Curren D. Price, Jr.
Mr. Mark E. Pulido (Alternate)

Four (4) and a quorum

ABSENT: Ms. Rosalind Wyman
Ms. Anita DeFrantz
Mr. Michael Custodio, Co-Counsel
Mr. Reginald B. Jones-Sawyer, Sr. (Non-voting)
Ms. Holly J. Mitchell (Non-voting)

STAFF PRESENT: Mr. Al Naipo, CAO and Secretary
Ms. Sonia Chan, Co-Counsel
Ms. Caitlin Taylor, Co-Counsel
Ms. Noreen Vincent, Co-Counsel

ALSO PRESENT: Mr. Larry Hafetz Mr. Joe Furin
Mr. Scott Kuhn Mr. Dan Stimmler
Mr. Skip Miller Ms. Ana Lasso
Ms. Caitlin Taylor Ms. Theordora Oyie

Mr. David Galaviz

Mr. Benny Tran

Mr. Mark Baucum

Ms. Jacqueline Horton
Mr. Christopher Diaz

Minutes of LAMCC Regular Meeting — Thursday, March 28, 2019
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3. President HAHN requested that Commissioner PRICE lead the meeting with the
Pledge of Allegiance.

President HAHN thanked the members of the public for coming out to the Coliseum
Commission meeting; and commented on the renaming and history of the Los
Angeles Memorial Coliseum.

4. RECEIVED public comment from James Boyle, Ruth Wong, Thomas Patrick
O’Shaughnessy, Jerry Orlemann, Kyle Orlemann, Howard Hernandez, Lamont
Duncan, Larry Vasquez, Greg Mitre, Annie Thompson Duncan, Gena Ooi,
Stephen Peck, Michael Parker, Ken Mulvey, Fred Atkinson, Albert Duarte,
Chris Cheeks, Godfrey Wachira, Gina Burnett, William Allen, Kimberly Ables
Jindra, Tess Banko, Nathan Grauses, Courtland Jindra and Diane Sher
regarding the renaming of the Los Angeles Memorial Coliseum.

After public comment, the Commission recessed at 3:50 p.m. to allow members of
the public to exit the meeting; the meeting reconvened at 3:58 p.m.

5. APPROVED a motion from Commissioner HAHN, seconded by
Commissioner PRICE, to accept the Minutes of the Commission’s Regular
Meeting on February 28, 2019.

Ayes: HAHN, RIDLEY-THOMAS, RIVERA, PRICE, PULIDO
Absent: DEFRANTZ AND WYMAN

6. RECEIVED and FILED by unanimous consent, there being no objection, the
report of the Chief Administrative Officer.

7. RECEIVED AND FILED by unanimous consent, there being no objection,
University of Southern California’s (USC) Los Angeles Memorial Coliseum
General Manager’s Report.

Commissioner RIDLEY-THOMAS requested David Galaviz to clarify any
concerns from the public regarding the impact of naming rights deal with United
Airlines on the timeline for the construction project; David Galaviz will follow-up
with the Commission regarding the budget for the construction project and the
timeline for the construction project.

8. RECEIVED AND FILED by unanimous consent, there being no objection,
the update on Exposition Park activities.
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9. APPROVED a motion from Commissioner RIDLEY-THOMAS, seconded by
Commissioner PRICE, the public interest event request from the City of Los
Angeles Ninth District, for the July 4" Fireworks Show and Community Festival,
to be held on July 4, 2019.

Ayes: HAHN, RIDLEY-THOMAS, RIVERA, PRICE, PULIDO
Absent: DEFRANTZ AND WYMAN

10. UPDATE ON LOS ANGELES RAIDERS COURT OF HONOR PLAQUES
APPROVED a motion from Commissioner PRICE, seconded by
Commissioner RIVERA, for the Commission to follow the procedure advised by
the Auditor-Controller that any funds collected for Court of Honor plaques should
be immediately deposited in the Commission’s account and marked as restricted
until such time all necessary funds are secured for each plaque, at which time
those funds can be made available and used for payment. In the event adequate
funds are not secured for any plaque by the deadline or at the end of any
extension thereof, those funds would be returned to each donor.

Ayes: HAHN, RIDLEY-THOMAS, RIVERA, PRICE, PULIDO
Absent: DEFRANTZ AND WYMAN

The Commission entered closed session at 4:12 p.m.

CS-1 Conference with Legal Counsel — Anticipated Litigation
(California Government Code Section 54956.9)

There was no reportable action.

The Commission entered open session at 4:47 p.m.

11. ADJOURNED at 4:48 p.m.

*kkkkkkkkkkkkkkkkk

Secretary
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COMMISSION STAFF

AL NAIPO
CHIEF ADMINISTRATIVE OFFICER
SECRETARY

EX-OFFICIO MEMBERS

STATE SENATOR
HOLLY J. MITCHELL

ASSEMBLYMEMBER
REGINALD JONES-SAWYER

SITE OF 1932 AND 1984
OLYMPICS ATHLETICS COMPETITION
OPENING & CLOSING CEREMONIES

LOS ANGELES MEMORIAL COLISEUM COMMISSION
3911 South Figueroa Street, Los Angeles, CA 90037

AGENDA ITEM # 6
CHIEF ADMINISTRATIVE OFFICER’S REPORT

AL NAIPO

COMMISSION MEMBERS

COUNTY OF LOS ANGELES
JANICE HAHN, PRESIDENT
MARK RIDLEY-THOMAS
ANITA L. DEFRANTZ (Alternate)

CITY OF LOS ANGELES

SOLOMON RIVERA
VICE PRESIDENT

CURREN D. PRICE, JR.

STATE OF CALIFORNIA
ROSALIND WYMAN

MARK E. PULIDO (Alternate)

Proposed Action: RECEIVE and FILE the Chief Administrative Officer’s report.

A. Mayor Tom Bradley Court of Honor Induction

Mayor Tom Bradley who fought to bring the 1984 Olympics to Los Angeles was formally
inducted into the Coliseum Court of Honor today during a ceremony hosted by the
Commission and attended by the Bradley family, former staffers, friends, officials and the
public.

Pink’s provided its famous hot dogs. The Bradley plaque is the 63 to hang in the Court of
Honor recognizing those making a significant contribution to the legacy of the Los Angeles
Memorial Coliseum and or the former Los Angeles Memorial Sports Arena.

. Update on Creating Los Angeles Memorial Coliseum Foundation

At its January 24, 2019 meeting, the Commission approved the creation of the Los
Angeles Memorial Coliseum Foundation and directed staff to proceed accordingly.

Staff submitted the initial filing last month to the Secretary of State’s office.
On April 3, 2019, the Secretary of State’s office requested an additional filing, which staff is
in the process of finalizing and will seek to submit by the end of the month.

Los Angeles Memorial Coliseum Commission

Regular Meeting 4/25/19
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C. Memorial Day

A reminder that on Memorial Day, the Commission and USC will mark this day by lighting
the torch above the Coliseum and flying American flags on the Peristyle to honor all
veterans who gave their all, especially those from World War | for whom this landmark was
dedicated to in 1923.

Los Angeles Memorial Coliseum Commission
Regular Meeting 4/25/19 Page 2 of 2



COMMISSION STAFF

AL NAIPO
CHIEF ADMINISTRATIVE OFFICER
SECRETARY

EX-OFFICIO MEMBERS
STATE SENATOR
HOLLY J. MITCHELL

ASSEMBLYMEMBER
REGINALD JONES-SAWYER

SITE OF 1932 AND 1984
OLYMPICS ATHLETICS COMPETITION
OPENING & CLOSING CEREMONIES

LOS ANGELES MEMORIAL COLISEUM COMMISSION

3911 South Figueroa Street, Los Angeles, CA 90037

AGENDA ITEM # 7

COMMISSION MEMBERS

COUNTY OF LOS ANGELES
JANICE HAHN, PRESIDENT
MARK RIDLEY-THOMAS
ANITA L. DEFRANTZ (Alternate)

CITY OF LOS ANGELES

SOLOMON RIVERA
VICE PRESIDENT

CURREN D. PRICE, JR.

STATE OF CALIFORNIA
ROSALIND WYMAN

MARK E. PULIDO (Alternate)

LOS ANGELES MEMORIAL COLISEUM COMMISSION FINANCIAL REPORT

RACHELLE ANEMA

Proposed Action: RECEIVE and FILE the financial report.

A. Statement of Receipts and Disbursements (Attachment 7.1)

B. Statement of Budget vs. Actual (Attachment 7.2)

C. Independent Auditor’s Report 2017-2018 (Attachment 7.3)



ATTACHMENT 7.1

LOS ANGELES MEMORIAL COLISEUM COMMISSION
STATEMENT OF RECEIPTS AND DISBURSEMENTS

FOR THE QUARTER ENDED MARCH 31, 2018

Beginning Cash Balance as of January 1, 2019

Receipts:

Interest
Funds Received from USC for Retiree Health

Funds Received from USC for Operating Expenses

Funds Received from USC for Retiree Health

Funds Received from USC for Operating Expenses

Interest

Funds Received from USC for Operating Expenses

Funds Received from USC for Retiree Health
Interest

State of California Refund

Restitution

Funds Received from USC for Retiree Health

Funds Received from USC for Operating Expenses

Total Beginning Cash Balance and Receipts:

Disbursements:

Burke, Williams, & Sorensen

California Public Employees Retirement System
California Public Employees Retirement System
California Public Employees Retirement System
I.A.T.S.E. Local No. 33

Auditor-Controller

California Public Employees Retirement System
California Public Employees Retirement System
California Public Employees Retirement System
I.LA.T.S.E. Local No. 33

Legends Hospitality

Board of Supervisors

State of California

California Public Employees Retirement System
California Public Employees Retirement System
California Public Employees Retirement System
Legends Hospitality

Total Disbursements:

Ending Cash Balance as of March 31, 2019

Prepared by MS 4/4/19

Los Angeles County
Department of Auditor-Controller
Accounting Division

01/01/19
01/07/19
01/07/19
01/16/19
01/16/19
02/01/19
02/21/19
02/21/19
03/01/19
03/18/19
03/18/19
03/22/19
03/22/19

01/01/19
01/13/19
02/20/19
02/20/19
02/20/19
02/20/19
03/20/19
03/20/19
03/20/19
03/20/19
03/20/19
03/20/19
03/26/19
03/28/19
03/28/19
03/28/19
03/28/19

Colls.eu.m L.A. Coliseum
Association
Fund V86 Fund V87 Total
$ 482,807.21 $ 874,756.83 $ 1,357,564.04
$ 249.85 $ 1,590.59 $ 1,840.44
$ 12,928.05 $ 12,928.05
$ 61,230.00 $ 61,230.00
$ 11,109.94 $ 11,109.94
$ 30,615.00 $ 30,615.00
$ 471.89 $ 1,783.98 $ 2,255.87
$ 30,615.00 $ 30,615.00
$ 17,349.59 $ 17,349.59
$ 447.24 $ 1,414.36 $ 1,861.60
$ 4,809.19 $ 4,809.19
$ 500.00 $ 500.00
$ 14,239.44 $ 14,239.44
$ 30,615.00 $ 30,615.00
$ 483,976.19 $ 1,093,556.97 $ 1,577,533.16
$ 133,333.00 $ 133,333.00
$ 12,662.44 $ 12,662.44
$ 12,662.44 $ 12,662.44
$ 17,349.59 $ 17,349.59
$ 6,856.08 $ 6,856.08
$ 8,199.61 $ 8,199.61
$ 12,662.44 $ 12,662.44
$ 18.12 $ 18.12
$ 14,293.44 $ 14,293.44
$ 6,856.08 $ 6,856.08
$ 52.39 $ 52.39
$ 75,929.11 $ 75,929.11
$ 10.00 $ 10.00
$ 14,293.44 $ 14,293.44
$ 0.13 $ 0.13
$ 14.93 $ 14.93
$ 83.62 $ 83.62
$ 133,343.00 $ 181,933.86 $ 315,276.86
$ 350,633.19 $ 911,623.11 $ 1,262,256.30
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Los Angeles Memorial Coliseum Commission/Association

Budget Vs. Actual for FY 2018-2019
As of December 31, 2018

ATTACHMENT 7.2

Funding Sources:

USC Contract Income:
USC-Operating Expense Budget/Trademark Allowance
USC-Retiree Health Insurance Premiums

Interest

Restitution

Miscellaneous

Total Funding Sources

Funding Uses:

Admin Support Services - BOS Executive Office
Auditor-Controller Services

Annual Financial Audit / Tax Services

Retired Employee Health Insurance

Retired Employee Pension

IATSE

Miscellaneous Operating Expenses

Legal

Total Funding Uses

Increase (decrease) in Net Assets

Notes

(1) Miscellaneous

Verizon Wireless

Donation
State of California Refund

FYE 2019 Q1 FYE 2019 Q2 FYE 2019 Q3 FYE 2019
Actual Actual Actual Actual
FY 2018-2019 (July 1,2018 - June| (July1-Sept.30, |(October1-Dec.31,| (Jan.1-March31, | Variance From
Note Budget 30, 2019) 2018) 2018) 2019) Budget

S 367,390 | S 275,535 | S 61,230 | $ 61,230 | $ 153,075 | S (91,855)

173,900 120,300 25,889 38,784 55,627 (53,600)

5,000 17,014 5,472 5,584 5,958 12,014

333,000 337,833 3,000 334,333 500 4,833

(1) - 34,609 29,800 - 4,809 34,609

S 879,290 | $ 785,292 | $ 125,392 | $ 439,931 ( S 219,969 | $ (93,998)

S 378,000 | S 148,724 | S - S 72,795 | $ 75,929 | $§ (229,276)

38,000 24,082 - 15,882 8,200 (13,918)

20,000 3,308 - 3,308 - (16,692)

173,900 121,720 38,784 36,966 45,970 (52,180)

151,949 113,962 37,987 37,987 37,987 (37,987)

65,953 54,849 20,568 20,568 13,712 (11,104)

3,500 599 400 53 146 (2,901)

133,200 133,333 - - 133,333 133

S 964,502 | $ 600,577 | $ 97,739 | $ 187,560 | $ 315,277 | $ (363,925)

S (85,212)( $ 184,715 | $ 27,652 | $ 252,371 | $ (95,308)| $ 269,927
7/27/2018 $ 10,800
8/20/2018 19,000
3/18/2019 4,809
Total $ 34,609
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ATTACHMENT 7.3

US. BANK TOWER
633 WEST 5TH STREET, SUITE 3320
L.OS ANGELES, CA 90071
(213) 736-6664 TELEPHONLE
(213) 736-6692 FAX

www.simpsonllp.com

SIMPSON & SIMPSON

CERTIFIED PUBLIC ACCOUNTANTS
QUNDING PARTNFERS

BRAINARD C. SIMPSON, CPA
MELBA W. SIMPSON, CPA

February 11, 2019

To the Honorable Members of the
Los Angeles Memorial Coliseum Commission

We have audited the financial statements of the Los Angeles Memorial Coliseum Commission
(Comission) as of and for the year ended June 30, 2018. Professional standards require that we
provide you with information about our responsibilities under generally accepted auditing
standards, as well as certain information related to the planned scope and timing of our audit. We
have communicated such information in the executed Work Order No. 8-69B. Professional
standards also require that we communicate to you the following information related to our audit.

Significant Audit Findings

Qualitative Aspects of Accounting Practices

Management is responsible for the selection and use of appropriate accounting policies. The
significant accounting policies used by the Commission are described in Note 1 to the basic
financial statements. We noted no transactions entered into by the Commission during the year
for which there is a lack of authoritative guidance or consensus. All significant transactions have

been recognized in the financial statements in the proper period.

Accounting estimates are an integral part of the financial statements prepared by management and
are based on management’s knowledge and experience about past and current events and
assumptions about future events. Certain accounting estimates are particularly sensitive because
of their significance to the financial statements and because of the possibility that future events
affecting them may differ significantly from those expected. The most sensitive estimates affecting
the Commission’s financial statements were:

Management’s estimates of the net pension liability and total OPEB liability are based on actuarial
determination. We evaluated the key factors and assumptions used to develop the net pension
liability and total OPEB liability in determining that the estimates are reasonable in relation to the

financial statements taken as a whole.
The financial statement disclosures are neutral, consistent, and clear.
Difficulties Encountered in Performing the Audit

We encountered no significant difficulties in dealing with management in performing and
completing our audit.

CPA)

The CPA. Never Underestimate The Value.”
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Honorable Members of

Los Angeles Memorial Coliseum Commission
February 11, 2019

Page 2 of 3

Corrected and Uncorrected Misstatements

Professional standards require us to accumulate all known and likely misstatements identified
during the audit, other than those that are clearly trivial, and communicate them to the appropriate
level of management. Management has corrected all the adjustments. proposed by us and there
were no uncorrected misstatements of the financial statements. In addition, none of the
misstatements detected as a result of audit procedures and corrected by management were material,
either individually or in the aggregate, to the financial statements taken as a whole.

Disagreements with Management

For purposes of this letter, a disagreement with management is a financial accounting, reporting,
or auditing matter, whether or not resolved to our satisfaction, that could be significant to the
financial statements or the auditor’s report. We are pleased to report that no such disagreements
arose during the course of our audit.

Management Representations

We have requested certain representations from management that are included in the management
representation letter dated on February 11, 2019.

Management Consultations with Other Independent Accountants

In some cases, management may decide to consult with other accountants about auditing and
accounting matters, similar to obtaining a “second opinion” on certain situations. If a consultation
involves application of an accounting principle to the Commission’s financial statements or a
determination of the type of auditor’s opinion that may be expressed on those statements, our
professional standards require the consulting accountant to check with us to determine that the
consultant has all the relevant facts. To our knowledge, there were no such consultations with

other accountants.
Other Audit Findings or Issues

We generally discuss a variety of matters, including the application of accounting principles and
auditing standards, with management each year prior to retention as the Commission’s auditors.
However, these discussions occurred in the normal course of our professional relationship and our
responses were not a condition to our retention.



Honorable Members of

Los Angeles Memorial Coliseum Commission
February 11, 2019

Page 3 of 3

Other Matters

We applied certain limited procedures to the Management’s Discussion and Analysis and the
Schedule of Net Pension Liability and Related Ratios, Schedule of Commission’s Contributions,
and Schedule of Changes in the Net OPEB Liability and Related Ratios, which are required
supplementary information (RSI) that supplement the basic financial statements. Our procedures
consisted of inquiries of management regarding the methods of preparing the information and
comparing the information for consistency with management’s responses to our inquiries, the basic
financial statements, and other knowledge we obtained during our audit of the basic financial
statements. We did not audit the RSI and do not express an opinion or provide any assurance on

the RSIL.

Restriction on Use

This information is intended solely for the use by the honorable members and management of the
Commission and is not intended to be and should not be used by anyone other than these specified

parties.

Very truly yours,

R

Simpson & Simpson
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LOS ANGELES MEMORIAL COLISEUM COMMISSION

BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2018
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LOS ANGELES MEMORIAL COLISEUM COMMISSION

BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
For the Year Ended June 30, 2018
(WITH COMPARATIVE AMOUNTS FOR 2017)
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U.S. BANK TOWER
633 WEST 5TH STREET, SUITE 3320
LOS ANGELES, CA 90071
(213) 736-6664 TELEPHONE
(213) 736-6692 FAX
www.simpsonandsimpsoncpas.com

SIMPSON & SIMPSON

CERTIFIED PUBLIC ACCOUNTANTS

FOUNDING PARTNERS
BRAINARD C. SIMPSON, CPA
MELBA W. SIMPSON, CPA

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

To the Honorable Members
Los Angeles Memorial Coliseum Commission
Los Angeles, California

Report on the Financial Statements

We have audited the accompanying basic financial statements of the Los Angeles Memorial Coliseum
Commission (Commission), which comprise the statement of net position (deficit) as of June 30, 2018,
and the related statements of revenues, expenses, and changes in fund net position (deficit), and cash
flows for the year then ended, and the related notes to the basic financial statements, which collectively
comprise the Commission’s basic financial statements as listed in the table of contents.

Management’s Responsibility for the Financial Statements

The Commission’s management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of these
financial statements in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States
of America; this includes the design, implementation, and maintenance of internal control relevant to
the preparation and fair presentation of financial statements that are free from material misstatement,
whether due to fraud or error.

Auditor’s Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these financial statements based on our audit. We
conducted our audit in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of
America and the standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government Auditing Standards,
issued by the Comptroller General of the United States. Those standards require that we plan and
perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements are free from
material misstatement.

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and disclosures
in the financial statements. The procedures selected depend on the auditor’s judgment, including the
assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or
error. In making those risk assessments, the auditor considers internal control relevant to the entity’s
preparation and fair presentation of the financial statements in order to design audit procedures that are
appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness
of the entity’s internal control. Accordingly, we express no such opinion. An audit also includes
evaluating the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of significant
accounting estimates made by management, as well as evaluating the overall presentation of the

financial statements.

3 The CPA. Never Underestimate The Value™



We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for
our audit opinion.

Opinion

In our opinion the financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material respects, the
financial position of the Commission as of June 30, 2018, and the changes in its financial position and
cash flow for the year then ended in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the
United States of America.

Prior Period Financial Statements

The financial statements of the Commission as of June 30, 2017 and for the year then ended were
audited by other auditors whose report dated January 5, 2018, expressed an unmodified opinion on
those statements.

Emphasis of Matter

As described in Note 1 to the financial statements, in fiscal year 2017-2018, the Commission
implemented new accounting guidance, GASB Statement No. 75, Accounting and Financial Reporting
for Postemployment Benefits Other Than Pensions. Our opinion is not modified with respect to this
matter.

Other Matters
Required Supplementary Information

Accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America require that the
management’s discussion and analysis on pages 6 through 12 and the required supplementary
information on pages 36 and 37, be presented to supplement the basic financial statements. Such
information, although not a part of the basic financial statements, is required by the Governmental
Accounting Standards Board, who considers it to be an essential part of financial reporting for placing
the basic financial statements in an appropriate operational, economic, or historical context. We have
applied certain limited procedures to the required supplementary information in accordance with
auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America, which consisted of inquiries of
management about the methods of preparing the information and comparing the information for
consistency with management’s responses to our inquiries, the basic financial statements, and other
knowledge we obtained during our audit of the basic financial statements. We do not express an opinion
or provide any assurance on the information because the limited procedures do not provide us with
sufficient evidence to express an opinion or provide any assurance.



Other Reporting Required by Government Auditing Standards

In accordance with Government Auditing Standards, we have also issued our report dated February 11,
2019 on our consideration of the Commission’s internal control over financial reporting and on our
tests of its compliance with certain provisions of laws, regulations, contracts and grant agreements, and
other matters. The purpose of that report is to describe the scope of our testing of internal control over
financial reporting and compliance and the results of that testing, and not to provide an opinion on
internal control over financial reporting or on compliance. That report is an integral part of an audit
performed in accordance with Government Auditing Standards in considering the Commission’s
internal control over financial reporting and compliance.

ey  origpar

Los Angeles, California
February 11,2019



LOS ANGELES MEMORIAL COLISEUM COMMISSION
MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS (UNAUDITED)
For the Year Ended June 30, 2018

As management of the Los Angeles Memorial Coliseum Commission (the Coliseum Commission) and
the Los Angeles Memorial Coliseum Association, Inc. (the Association) (hereafter collectively referred
to as the Commission), we offer readers of the Commission’s financial statements this narrative
overview and analysis of the financial activities of the Commission for the year ended June 30, 2018.
The information contained in the Management’s Discussion and Analysis (MD&A) should be
considered in conjunction with the information contained in the Commission’s financial statements.

This discussion is intended to:

e Assist the reader in understanding significant financial issues
e Provide an overview of the Commission’s financial activities
e Identify changes in the Commission’s financial position

FINANCIAL HIGHLIGHTS

o The Commission’s liabilities and deferred inflows exceeded its assets and deferred outflows as
of June 30, 2018 by $9.01 million. The Commission had investment in capital assets at year-
end of $107,500. See further discussion on page 9.

e The Commission’s total net deficit, including all activities, decreased by $230,296 compared
with an increase of $799,082 during fiscal year 2016-2017.

e Total operating revenues decreased by $57,383 and operating expenses decreased by $470,947
in fiscal year 2017-2018 compared to the prior year.

OVERVIEW OF THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

This discussion and analysis are intended to serve as an introduction to the Commission’s audited
financial statements, which are comprised of the 1) basic financial statements; and 2) notes to the basic
financial statements. This report also includes the required supplementary information.

The Commission’s financial statements are prepared on the accrual basis in accordance with generally
accepted accounting principles. It is designed to provide readers with a broad overview of the
Commission’s finances, in a manner similar to a private-sector business. Additional information on the
Commission’s significant accounting policies can be found in Note 1 on pages 16 to 20 of this report.

o The Statement of Net Position (Deficit) presents information on all of the Commission’s
assets, deferred outflows of resources, liabilities, deferred inflows of resources, and resulting
net position. Over time, an increase or decrease in net position may serve as a useful indicator
of the Commission’s financial position.



LOS ANGELES MEMORIAL COLISEUM COMMISSION
MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS (UNAUDITED)
For the Year Ended June 30, 2018

e The Statement of Revenues, Expenses and Changes in Fund Net Position (Deficit) presents
information showing how the Commission’s net position (deficit) changed during the most
recent fiscal year. All changes in fund net position (deficit) are reported as soon as the
underlying event giving rise to the change occurs, regardless of the timing or related cash flows.
Thus, revenue and expenses are reported in these statements for some items that will result in
cash flows in future periods.

e The Statement of Cash Flows relates to the flows of cash and cash equivalents. Consequently,
only transactions that affect the Commission’s cash accounts are recorded in these statements.
A reconciliation is provided at the bottom of the Statement of Cash Flows to assist in the
understanding of the difference between cash flows from operating activities and operating
income or loss.

A blended component unit is an organization that is legally separate from the Commission but is at the
same time related to the Commission financially (i.e., the Commission is financially accountable for it)
or the nature of its relationship with the Commission is so significant that its exclusion would cause the
Commission’s financial statements to be misleading or incomplete. The Los Angeles Memorial
Coliseum Association, Inc. is a blended component unit of the Commission and its financial activity has
been included in the Commission’s financial statements.

The Commission’s financial statements are located on pages 13 to 15 of this report. The component
unit condensed financial statements are included in Note 2 starting on page 21.

Notes to the Financial Statements

The notes to the financial statements provide additional information that is essential to a full
understanding of the data provided in the Commission’s financial statements. Notes to the financial
statements are on pages 16-34.

Other Information

In addition to the financial statements and accompanying notes, this report also presents certain required
supplementary information concerning the Commission’s net pension liability and related ratios,
pension contributions and progress in funding its obligation to provide pension benefits and other
postemployment benefits to former employees.

FINANCIAL ANAYLSIS

Condensed Statement of Net Position

As noted earlier, net position may serve over time as a useful indicator of a government’s financial

position. As shown in the table below, the Commission’s liabilities and deferred inflows exceeded its
assets and deferred outflows by $9.01 million at June 30, 2018.



LOS ANGELES MEMORIAL COLISEUM COMMISSION
MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS (UNAUDITED)
For the Year Ended June 30, 2018

Table 1
Condensed Statement of Net Position (Deficit)
June 30, 2018 and 2017

2018 2017
Assets:
Current assets $ 1,201,882 $ 306,267
Deferred rent receivable 640,737 658,292
Capital assets, net of depreciation 107,500 107,500
Total Assets $ 1,950,119 $ 1,072,059
Deferred Outflows of Resources $ 1,204,319 $ 594,623
Liabilities:
Current and other liabilities $ 105,445 $ 25,486
Noncurrent liabilities 11,376,694 10,648,252
Total Liabilities $ 11,482,139 $ 10,673,738
Deferred Inflows of Resources $ 681,463 $ 232,404
Net Position
Net Investment in Capital Assets $ 107,500 $ 107,500
Unrestricted (Deficit) (9,116,664) (9,346,960)

Total Net Position (Deficit)  $ (9,009,164) $ (9,239,460)

Significant changes in assets and liabilities included the following:
Current Assets

Current assets increased by $895,615, or 292.43%, from the prior year largely due to an increase in cash
resulting from a settlement received during the year in the amount of $2.00 million.



LOS ANGELES MEMORIAL COLISEUM COMMISSION
MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS (UNAUDITED)
For the Year Ended June 30, 2018

Liabilities
Liabilities increased by $808,401, or 7.57%, from the prior year primarily due to the increase in the net
pension liability, other postemployment benefits (OPEB), and long-term debt.

Deferred Outflows of Resources and Deferred Inflows of Resources

Under Governmental Accounting Standards Board (GASB) 68 and 75, the Commission is required to
defer the recognition of changes in investment gain/loss, actuarial assumptions and methods, and plan
benefits related to pension and OPEB. At June 30, 2018, the Commission reported deferred outflows of
resources of $1.20 million, and deferred inflows of resources of $681,463.

The Commission’s total net position consists of the following two components:
Net Investment in Capital Assets

As of June 30, 2018, the Commission had $107,500 net investment in capital assets, all related to the
freeway sign property.

Unrestricted Net Position (Deficit)

The Commission’s total unrestricted net deficit is $9.01 million. The deficit closely parallels the
noncurrent liabilities for net pension liability, OPEB, straight-line rent accrual, and the University of
Southern California (USC) line of credit which total $11.31 million. The net deficit is expected to be
covered by future USC rent revenue, except for the $1.94 million USC line of credit and the $3.22
million net pension liability.



LOS ANGELES MEMORIAL COLISEUM COMMISSION
MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS (UNAUDITED)
For the Year Ended June 30, 2018

Condensed Statement of Revenues, Expenses and Changes in Fund Net Position (Deficit)

The following table presents condensed information showing how the Commission’s net position
changed during the recent fiscal year as compared with the prior fiscal year.

Table 2
Condensed Statement of Revenues, Expenses and Changes in Net Position (Deficit)
June 30, 2018 and 2017

2018 2017
Revenues:
Rent $ 1,282,446 $ 1,342,258
Administrative services 501,166 498,369
Settlement revenue 2,001,825 364,597
Other 14,366 6,820
Total revenues 3,799,803 2,212,044
Expenses:
Rent 1,248,936 1,248,936
General operating 1,905,363 1,434,416
Pension expense 411,942 209,981
Other 118,839 117,793
Total expenses 3,685,080 3,011,126
Change in net position (deficit) $ 114,723 $ (799,082)

10
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MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS (UNAUDITED)
For the Year Ended June 30, 2018

Revenue Highlights

Total revenues increased by $1.59 million or 71.78% when compared with the prior year. This is
primarily due to settlement income received during fiscal year 2017-2018.

Operating revenue provided by USC for rent remained consistent. The agreement with USC requires
semi-annual lease payments from USC on behalf of the Commission beginning in 2013 and, assuming
the exercise of options, USC will continue making payments through 2054. During fiscal year 2017-
2018, the Commission recognized rental income from this sublease in the amount of $1.28 million for
the rent due to the State. The Commission has also recorded lease revenue of $501,166 from USC for
the Commission operating expenses and OPEB, and $2.00 million in settlement revenue.

Expense Highlights

Total expenses increased by $673,954 or 22.38%, when compared with the prior year. This increase
was primarily the result of increased legal expenses.

CAPITAL ASSET AND DEBT ADMINISTRATION

Capital Assets

The Commission’s capital assets as of June 30, 2018 were $107,500. Capital assets included land related
to the freeway sign parcel.

Debt Administration

The Commission’s liabilities for long-term debt increased by $114,111 or 6.26% when compared with
the prior year. This is due to the increase in the USC line of credit. Specific long-term debt changes are
discussed in Note 5.

The Commission does not plan to issue any new bonds or other debt instruments in the near future.
ECONOMIC FACTORS

In fiscal year 2017-2018, the Commission accepted a settlement agreement regarding a lawsuit brought

against former promoters hired by the Commission. The Commission received $2.00 million in fiscal
year 2017-2018 and will receive an additional $1.50 million over the next three years.

11
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CONTACTING THE COMMISSION’S FINANCIAL MANAGEMENT

This financial report is designed to provide a general review of the Commission’s finances for those
with an interest in the Commission’s finances and to show the Commission’s accountability for the
money it receives. If you have questions about this report or need additional financial information,
contact Mr. Al Naipo, Chief Administrative Officer, at anaipo@bos.lacounty.gov or at Los Angeles
Memorial Coliseum Commission, 500 West Temple Street, Room 383, Los Angeles, California 90012.

12



LOS ANGELES MEMORIAL COLISEUM COMMISSION
Statement of Net Position (Deficit)
June 30, 2018
(With comparative amounts for June 30, 2017)

2018 2017
Assets and Deferred Outflows of Resources (Note 1)
Assets
Current assets
Cash and cash equivalents (Note 3) $ 1,182,636 $ 277,619
Accounts receivable, net of allowance for doubtful
accounts of $93,828 in 2018 and 2017 - -
Other receivables 6,301 2,216
Prepaid expenses 12,945 26,432
Total current assets 1,201,882 306,267
Non-current assets
Deferred rent receivable (Note 8) 640,737 658,292
Capital assets, net (Note 4) 107,500 107,500
Total non-current assets 748,237 765,792
Total assets 1,950,119 1,072,059
Deferred Outflows of Resources
Deferred pension related items (Note 6) 1,204,319 594,623
Total assets and deferred outflows of resources $ 3,154,438 $ 1,666,682
Liabilities, Deferred Inflows of Resources and Net Position (Note 1)
Current liabilities
Accounts payable and other accrued expenses $ 105,445 $ 25,486
Total current liabilities 105,445 25,486
Non-current liabilities
Postretirement healthcare plan (Note 7) 4,279,622 3,833,703
Net pension liability (Note 6) 3,223,459 2,756,150
Straight-line rent accrual (Note 8) 1,863,830 1,914,894
Other long-term liabilities (Note 9) 71,603 319,436
Long-term debt (Note 5) 1,938,180 1,824,069
Total non-current liabilities 11,376,694 10,648,252
Total liabilities 11,482,139 10,673,738
Deferred Inflows of Resources
Deferred pension related items (Note 6) 681,463 232,404
Net Position (Deficit)
Net investment in capital assets 107,500 107,500
Unrestricted deficit (9,116,664) (9,346,960)
Total net position (deficit) (9,009,164) (9,239,460)
Total liabilities, deferred inflows of resources
and net position (deficit)y $ 3,154,438 $ 1,666,682

See accompanying notes to the basic financial statements.
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LOS ANGELES MEMORIAL COLISEUM COMMISSION
Statement of Revenues, Expenses and Changes in Net Position (Deficit)
Year Ended June 30, 2018
(with comparative amounts for year ended June 30, 2017)

2018 2017
Operating revenue (Note 1):
Rent (Note 8) $ 1,282,446 $ 1,342,258
Administrative services 501,166 498,369
Other income 777 1,145
Total operating revenue 1,784,389 1,841,772
Operating expenses:
Retiree healthcare (Note 7) 691,979 520,266
Rent (Note 8) 1,248,936 1,248,936
General operating expenses 2,517 6,510
Professional 352,396 317,866
Legal 858,471 589,774
Total operating expenses 3,154,299 2,683,352
Total operating (loss) (1,369,910) (841,580)
Nonoperating revenues (expenses):
Interest income 13,589 5,675
Interest expense (118,839) (117,793)
Settlement income 2,001,825 364,597
Pension expense (Note 6) (411,942) (209,981)
Total nonoperating expenses 1,484,633 42,498
Change in net position 114,723 (799,082)
Net position (deficit), beginning of year, as restated (Note 1) (9,123,887) (8,440,378)
Net position (deficit), end of year $ (9,009,164) $ (9,239,460)

See accompanying notes to the basic financial statements.
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LOS ANGELES MEMORIAL COLISEUM COMMISSION

Statement of Cash Flows
Year Ended June 30, 2018

(With comparative amounts for year ended June 30, 2017)

Cash flows from operating activities:
Receipts from customers
Payments to suppliers
Payments to employees
Net cash from operating activities

Cash flows from investing activities:
Interest received
Cash received on settlement
Net cash from investing activities

Net increase (decrease) in cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents, beginning of the year
Cash and cash equivalents, end of the year

Reconciliation of Operating Loss to Net Cash from Operating
Activities
Operating income (loss)
Adjustments to reconcile operating income (loss) to net cash
from operating activities:
(Increase) decrease in assets:
Deferred rent receivable
Other receivables
Prepaid expenses
Increase (decrease) in liabilities and deferred amounts:
Accounts payable and other accrued expenses
Postretirement healthcare
Net pension liability
Straight-line rent accrual
Other long-term liabilities
Capital lease obligation
Deferred pension related items
Total adjustments
Net cash from operating activities

Supplemental schedule of noncash capital and related financing activities
Lease payments made by tenant on capital lease obligation

2018

493,131
(1,447,104)

(156,424)
(1,110,397)

13,589
2,001,825

2,015,414

905,017

277,619

1,182,636

(1,369,910)

17,555
(4,085)
13,487

79,959
561,492
55,367
(51,064)
(247,833)
(4,728)

(160,637)

259,513

(1,110,397)

See accompanying notes to the basic financial statements.
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$

2017

488,886
(974,288)

(141,356)
(626,757)

5,675
364,597

370,272

(256,485)

534,105

277,619

(841,580)

17,554
(323)

(60,138)
353,563
532,176
(51,064)
98,321
(70,117)

(605,150)

214,822

(626,758)

59,812



LOS ANGELES MEMORIAL COLISEUM COMMISSION
NOTES TO THE BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
Year Ended June 30, 2018

Note 1. Nature of Organization and Summary of Significant Accounting Policies

Nature of organization: The Los Angeles Memorial Colissum Commission (the Coliseum
Commission) was created pursuant to the Government Code of the State of California (the State) under
a Joint Powers Agreement (JPA) between the City of Los Angeles (the City), the County of Los Angeles
(the County), and the Sixth District Agricultural Association or California Science Center (CSC), an
institution of the State (hereinafter referred to as the member agencies). The Coliseum Commission has
a single purpose; to provide for the ongoing maintenance and operation of the Los Angeles Memorial
Coliseum (the Coliseum), opened in 1923, and the property of the former Los Angeles Memorial Sports
Arena (the Sports Arena), opened in 1959.

On July 29, 2013, a significant change in the management of these facilities occurred when the Coliseum
Commission and the University of Southern California (USC) executed the Second Amendment to the
Lease and Agreement (Commission-USC Lease), which transferred to USC the responsibility for the
long-term operation of the Coliseum and Sports Arena and the capital renewal of the Coliseum. The
Coliseum Commission deemed this action to be in the best interest of the community to ensure that the
Coliseum, a national historic landmark, is upgraded and preserved for current and future generations.
The Commission-USC Lease expires in 2033, or if all options are exercised, on December 31, 2054, the
same date as the expiration of the Coliseum Commission’s two leases with the State of California for
the Coliseum and Sports Arena properties.

Following the commencement of the Commission-USC Lease, the Commission voted in September
2013 to enter into an agreement with the County Board of Supervisors Executive Office for that office
to assume the administrative support functions of the Commission no later than January 1, 2014. On
October 8, 2013, the Board of Supervisors of the County also approved that agreement. As of December
14, 2013, the Coliseum Commission no longer has any employees.

An amended JPA agreement was fully executed on February 26, 2014, after approval and execution by
all three-member agencies. This amended agreement revised the governance structure, meeting
requirements and operating arrangements of the Colissum Commission in view of the change in the
level of the daily responsibilities of the Coliseum Commission as a result of the Commission-USC
Lease.

An additional 2017 amendment changed the number of members to six (6) members. The Coliseum
Commission consists of two (2) members appointed by the Mayor of the City of Los Angeles subject to
confirmation by the City Council of Los Angeles; two (2) members appointed by the Board of
Supervisors of the County of Los Angeles; and two (2) members appointed by the Governor of the State
of California.

In February 1996, under the JPA, the Los Angeles Memorial Coliseum Association, Inc. (the
Association) was established as a non-profit 501(c)(3) corporation in the State of California, which is
the entity that provided the food and beverage operations for the Coliseum Commission until the day-
to-day activities of the food and beverage operations were transferred to USC under the Commission-
USC Lease agreement. The Association is overseen by and for the benefit of the Coliseum Commission,
the results of the Association are combined with those of the Coliseum Commission (collectively, the
Commission). The Association is a blended component unit in the financial statements.
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LOS ANGELES MEMORIAL COLISEUM COMMISSION
NOTES TO THE BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
Year Ended June 30, 2018

Note 1. Nature of Organization and Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (Continued)
A summary of the Commission’s significant accounting policies is as follows:

Financial statement presentation: The financial statements of the Commission have been prepared in
conformity with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America as applied to
government units and the Commission is accounted for as a proprietary fund. The Governmental
Accounting Standards Board (GASB) is the accepted standard-setting body for establishing
governmental accounting and financial reporting principles. The accompanying financial statements
have been prepared using the economic resources measurement focus and the accrual basis of
accounting. The Commission records revenue primarily from rental income from the Commission-USC
Lease agreement and other charges for services to external users and reports its financial statements
under guidance for special purpose entities engaged in only business-type activities. This model allows
all financial information for the Commission to be reported in a single column in the basic financial
statements.

The accompanying financial statements include the accounts of the Coliseum Commission and the
Association. All material-related party balances and transactions have been eliminated.

The Commission’s financial statements are presented in accordance with the provisions of GASB No.
34 Basic Financial Statements — and Management’s Discussion and Analysis — for State and Local
Governments. GASB Statement No. 34 established standards for external financial reporting for all
state and local governmental entities. It requires the classification of net position into three components
— net investment in capital assets; restricted; and unrestricted.

These classifications are defined as follows:

Net investment in capital assets — This component of net position consists of capital assets, including
restricted capital assets, net of accumulated depreciation and is reduced by the outstanding balances of
any bonds, mortgages, notes, or other borrowings that are attributable to the acquisition, construction,
or improvement of those assets. If there are significant unspent related debt proceeds at year-end, the
portion of the debt attributable to the unspent proceeds is not included in the calculation of net
investment in capital assets. Rather, that portion of the debt is included in the same net position
component as the unspent proceeds. As of June 30, 2018, the Commission had $107,500 net investment
in capital assets.

Restricted net position — This component of net position represents restricted assets net of liabilities that
relate to those specific restricted assets. A restricted asset is an asset for which constraints have been
placed on the asset’s use by creditors, contributors, laws, or regulations of other governments, or as a
consequence of a restriction established by the reporting government’s own governing body at the time
a particular fee, charge, levy, or assessment was approved. These restrictions must be narrower than the
general purposes for which the reporting government can use its resources. As of June 30, 2018, the
Commission had no restricted net position.

Unrestricted net position — When both restricted and unrestricted net position are available, restricted

resources are depleted first before the unrestricted resources are used. As of June 30, 2018, the
Commission had $9.12 million in unrestricted net deficit.
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Note 1. Nature of Organization and Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (Continued)

As of June 30, 2018, the Commission has a net deficit of $9.01 million. The deficit balance is primarily
from noncurrent liabilities for the postretirement healthcare plan, net pension liability, straight-line rent
accrual, the USC line of credit, and the liability related to International Alliance of Theatrical Stage
Employees (IATSE). Under the Commission-USC Lease, USC will pay the postretirement healthcare
plan liabilities and the rent liabilities over time, but the $3.22 million net pension liability, the $1.86
million USC line of credit, and the $64,983 accounts payable liability of the IATSE payments will
remain the responsibility of the Commission. The Commission is currently evaluating options to reduce
the net deficit.

Cash and cash equivalents: Cash and cash equivalents represent funds held in the County of Los
Angeles Treasury Pool. Cash equivalents are defined as short-term, highly liquid investments that are
both readily convertible to known amounts of cash or so near their maturity that they present
insignificant risk of changes in value because of changes in interest rates and have an original maturity
of three months or less. For purposes of the statement of cash flows, cash represents balances that can
be readily withdrawn without substantial notice or penalty.

Accounts receivable: Accounts receivable are carried at original invoice amount less an estimate made
for doubtful receivables based on a review of all outstanding amounts. Management determines the
allowance for doubtful accounts by regularly evaluating individual customer receivables and
considering a customer’s financial condition and credit history and current economic conditions. An
account receivable is considered past due if any portion of the receivable balance is outstanding for more
than 30 days.

Accounts receivable are written off when deemed uncollectible. Recoveries of accounts receivable
previously written off are recorded when received.

Prepaid expenses: Certain payments to vendors reflect costs applicable to future accounting periods
and are recorded as prepaid expenses in the accompanying statement of net position (deficit).

Capital assets: Capital assets are stated at cost or at the estimated fair value at the date of contribution,
if contributed.

Depreciation is computed on the straight-line basis to the nearest whole month, starting in the year of
acquisition, over the estimated useful lives of the respective assets, ranging from three to 10 years for
equipment and 20 years for building improvements and structures. Maintenance and repair costs are
expensed when incurred. Upon sale or other disposition, any gain or loss is included in income.

Straight-line rent accrual: Rent expense is recorded on a straight-line basis over the term of the lease
with the State. Amounts recorded as expense over amounts paid are recorded as straight-line rent accrual
in the statement of net position (deficit).

Deferred outflows and inflows of resources: Pursuant to GASB 63 “Financial Reporting of Deferred
Outflows of Resources, Deferred Inflows of Resources, and Net Position”, and GASB 65 “Items
Previously Reported as Assets and Liabilities”, the Commission recognizes deferred outflows of
resources and/or deferred inflows of resources in the statement of net position.
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Note 1. Nature of Organization and Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (Continued)

In addition to assets, the financial statements report a separate section for deferred outflows of resources.
Deferred outflows of resources represent a consumption of net position that applies to a future period
and will not be recognized as an outflow of resources (expenses/expenditures) until then.

In addition to liabilities, the financial statements report a separate section for deferred inflows of
resources. Deferred inflows of resources represent an acquisition of net position that applies to a future
period and will not be recognized as an inflow of resources (revenue) until that time, except for pension
related deferred inflows of resources, which will be recognized as a credit to expense.

Specific disclosures of items representing deferred outflows and inflows of resources appear in Note 6.

Operating revenues and operating expenses: Operating revenues include gross receipts from rent due
from its only tenant, USC, which is composed of a fixed monthly operating allowance, and amounts
equal to the Commission’s payment obligations for: 1) retiree healthcare; and 2) rent to the State.
Operating expenses represent the direct and indirect costs for the operations of the Commission during
the year. Revenues and expenses outside the normal course of operations are recorded as nonoperating
revenues and expenses in the statement of revenues, expenses and changes in fund net position (deficit).
Nonoperating revenues and expenses consist primarily of interest income, interest expense and pension
expense.

Taxation: As a joint-powers authority, the Commission is not subject to income or franchise taxation
by federal or state authorities. The Association is recognized by the Internal Revenue Service (IRS) as
a tax-exempt organization under Section 501(c)(3) of the U.S. Internal Revenue Code.

Use of estimates: The preparation of financial statements requires management to make estimates and
assumptions that affect the amounts reported in the financial statements and accompanying notes.
Actual results could differ from those estimates. Significant estimates and assumptions made by
management include, but are not limited to, contingent assets and liabilities, allowance for uncollectible
receivables, inventory reserves and the recoverability of the carrying value of long-lived assets.

Restatement of Net Position: The Commission implemented GASB Statement No. 75, “Accounting
and Financial Reporting for Postemployment Benefits Other Than Pensions” (GASB 75) in fiscal year
2017-2018. The cumulative effect of applying the provisions of GASB 75 has been reported as a
restatement of beginning net position.

Beginning net position $ (9,239,460)
Cumulative effect from adoption of GASB 75:
Deletion of GASB 45 other postemployment benefit assets 3,833,703
Recognition of GASB 75 net OPEB liability (3,718,130)
Beginning net position, as restated $ (9,123,887)
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Note 1. Nature of Organization and Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (Continued)
Pronouncements issued and implemented during the year ended June 30, 2018:

In June 2015, GASB issued Statement No. 75, “Accounting and Financial Reporting for
Postemployment Benefit Plans Other Than Pensions.” This Statement is to improve accounting and
financial reporting by governments for postemployment benefits other than pensions (other
postemployment benefits or OPEB) and improves information about financial support that is provided
by other entities for making decisions, assessing accountability, and creating additional transparency.
This Statement replaces Statements No. 45, “Accounting and Financial Reporting by Employers for
Postemployment Benefits Other Than Pensions,” as amended, and No. 57, “OPEB Measurements by
Agent Employers and Agent Multiple-Employer Plans.”” The provisions of this Statement are effective
for financial statements for reporting periods beginning after June 15, 2017. The cumulative effect of
applying the provisions of GASB 75 has been reported as a restatement of beginning net position. Also,
see Note 7 for additional information.

In March 2016, GASB issued Statement No. 81, “Irrevocable Split Interest Agreements.” This
Statement is to improve accounting and financing reporting for irrevocable split-interest agreements by
providing recognition and measurement guidance for situations in which a government is a beneficiary
of the agreement. The provisions of this Statement are effective for financial statements for reporting
periods beginning after December 15, 2016. Implementation of the GASB Statement No. 81 did not
have an impact on the Commission’s financial statements for the fiscal year ended June 30, 2018.

In March 2017, GASB issued Statement No. 85, “Omnibus 2017.” This Statement is to address
practice issues that have been identified during implementation and application of certain GASB
Statements, including issues related to blending component units, goodwill, fair value measurement and
application, and postemployment benefits (pensions and OPEB). This Statement includes requirements
for the timing and measurement of pension or OPEB liabilities and expenditures recognized in financial
statements prepared using the current financial resources measurement focus, and simplification of
certain aspects of the alternative measurement method for OPEB. The provisions of Statement No. 85
are effective for financial statements for reporting periods beginning after June 15, 2017. See Note 7
for additional information.

In May 2017, GASB issued Statement No. 86, ““Certain Debt Extinguishment Issues.” This Statement
is to improve consistency in accounting and financing reporting for in-substance defeasance of debt by
providing guidance for transactions in which cash and other monetary assets acquired with only existing
resources — resources other than the proceeds of refunding debt — are placed in an irrevocable trust for
the sole purpose of extinguishing debt. This Statement also improves accounting and financial reporting
for prepaid insurance on debt that is extinguished and notes to financial statements for debt that is
defeased in substance. The provisions of this Statement are effective for financial statements for
reporting periods beginning after June 15, 2017. Implementation of the GASB Statement No. 86 did
not have an impact on the Commission’s financial statements for the fiscal year ended June 30, 2018.
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Note 2. Component Units of the Commission

Year Ended June 30, 2018

The following is the condensed combining detail for the statement of net position (deficit) as of

June 30, 2018:

Current assets
Deferred rent receivable
Capital assets

Total assets

Deferred Outflows of Resources
Current liabilities
Long-term liabilities

Total liabilities

Deferred Inflows of Resources

Net investment in capital assets
Unrestricted net position
Total net position (deficit)

Coliseum
Commission Association  Eliminations Combined
$ 1,053,033 $ 148,849 § - $ 1,201,882
640,737 - - 640,737
107,500 - - 107,500
1,801,270 148,849 - 1,950,119
1,204,319 1,204,319
105,445 - - 105,445
11,376,694 - - 11,376,694
11,482,139 - - 11,482,139
681,463 681,463
107,500 - - 107,500
(9,265,513) 148,849 - (9,116,664)
$(9,158,013) $ 148,849 § - $(9,009,164)
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Note 2. Component Units of the Commission (Continued)
The following is the condensed combining detail for the statement of revenues, expenses and changes

in fund net position (deficit) for the year ended June 30, 2018:

Coliseum
Commission Association  Eliminations Combined

Operating revenues:

Rental revenue $ 1,282,446 $ - $ - $ 1,282,446
Other income 499,688 2,255 - 501,943
Total operating revenues 1,782,134 2,255 - 1,784,389

Operating expenses:

Other operating expenses 1,905,333 30 - 1,905,363

Rental expense 1,248,936 - - 1,248,936
Total operating expenses 3,154,269 30 - 3,154,299
Operating gain/ (loss) (1,372,135) 2,225 - (1,369,910)

Nonoperating revenues (expenses):

Other nonoperating expenses 1,484,633 - - 1,484,633
Total nonoperating
expenses 1,484,633 - - 1,484,633
Change in net position 112,498 2,225 - 114,723
Beginning net position (deficit), as restated (9,270,511) 146,624 - (9,123,887)
Ending net position (deficit) $ (9,158,013) $ 148,849 $ - $ (9,009,164)
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Note 2. Component Units of the Commission (Continued)

The following is the condensed combining detail for the statement of cash flows for the year ended
June 30, 2018:

Coliseum
Commission  Association Combined

Net cash (used in) provided by operating activities $(1,110,367) $ (30) $(1,110,397)

Net cash (used in) provided by investing activities 2,013,234 2,180 2,015,414

Beginning cash and cash equivalents balances 131,731 145,888 277,619
Ending cash and cash equivalents balances $ 1,034,598 $148,038 $ 1,182,636

Note 3. Cash and Cash Equivalents

As of June 30, 2018, $1.18 million was invested in the County of Los Angeles Investment Pool. In
accordance with the California Government Code, cash balances of the Commission are deposited with
and pooled and invested by the Los Angeles County Treasurer for the purpose of increasing interest
earnings through investment activities. Interest earned on pooled investments is deposited to
participating funds based upon each fund’s average daily balance during the allocation period.

Statutes authorize the County of Los Angeles to invest pooled investments in in obligations of the United
States Treasury, federal agencies, State and local agencies, municipalities, asset-backed securities,
bankers’ acceptances, commercial paper rated A-1 by Standard & Poor’s Global Rating Services (S&P)
or P-1 by Moody’s Investors Service (Moody’s), and F-1 by Fitch, negotiable certificates of deposit,
medium-term notes, corporate notes, repurchase agreements, reverse repurchase agreements, time
deposits, shares of beneficial interest of a Joint Powers Authority that invests in authorized securities,
shares of beneficial interest issued by diversified management companies known as money market
mutual funds (MMF) registered with the Securities and Exchange Commission (SEC), the State of
California’s Local Agency Investment Fund (LAIF), interest rate swaps, and supranational institutions.

Investments are stated at fair value and are valued on a monthly basis. The Treasurer categorizes its fair
value measurements within the fair value hierarchy established by generally accepted accounting
principles. Securities classified in Level 1 of the fair value hierarchy are valued using prices quoted in
active markets for those securities. Securities classified in Level 2 of the fair value hierarchy are valued
using other observable inputs such as matrix pricing techniques or based on quoted prices for assets in
markets that are not active. Matrix Pricing is used to value securities based on the securities’ relationship
to benchmark quoted prices. Level 3 inputs are significant unobservable inputs. Securities classified in
Level 3 are valued using the income approach such as discounted cash flow techniques. Investment in
an external government investment pool is not subject to reporting within the level hierarchy.

Investment policies and associated risk factors applicable to the Commission are included in the County
of Los Angeles’ Comprehensive Annual Financial Report for the year ended June 30, 2018. Detailed
deposit and investment risk disclosures are included in Note 5 of the County of Los Angeles’
Comprehensive Annual Financial Report.
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Note 4. Capital Assets

The only asset remaining is the parcel of land related to the freeway sign located at 3843 S. Grand
Avenue. This parcel of land is being used as collateral for a line of credit with USC (see Note 5).

July 1, 2017 Additions Impairment  Disposals  June 30, 2018

Non-depreciable:
Land—parking lots and freeway sign  $ 107,500 $ - S - 5 - S 107,500
Total $ 107,500 $ - S - 8 - S 107,500

Note 5. Long-Term Debt

USC line of credit: In March 2013, the Commission executed an agreement with USC providing a line
of credit for $1.5 million secured by the Commission’s real property, the freeway sign located at 3843
S. Grand Avenue. The outstanding balance bears an interest rate of 6 percent per annum and originally
was due on May 16, 2014. However, as part of the Commission-USC Lease, the agreement was
amended to extend the maturity date to July 29, 2023.

Current year activity of long-term debt during the fiscal year ended June 30, 2018 is as follows:

Non-Cash
Additions
July 1, 2017 Additions (Deduction) Payments June 30, 2018
Long-term debt:
USC line of credit $ 1,824,069 $ -3 114,111 § - S 1,938,180
Total long-term debt § 1,824,069 $ - 5 114,111 § - 3 1,938,180

Future minimum payments under the agreements at June 30, 2018 are as follows:

Total

Years Ending June 30, Principal Interest Payments

2019 $ - S - 3 -

2020 - - -

2021 - - -

2022 - - -

2023 - - -
Thereafter 1,433,049 505,131 1,938,180
$ 1,433,049 $ 505,131 § 1,938,180
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Note 6. Retirement Pension Plan

Plan Description

The Commission’s former employees were eligible to participate in the California Public Employee
Retirement System (CalPERS) Miscellaneous Plan, a cost sharing multiple employer pension plan.
CalPERS acts as a common investment and administrative agent for various local and state
governmental agencies within the State of California. Benefit provisions and other requirements are
established by State statute and by employer contract with CalPERS. The Commission selects optional
benefit provisions from the benefit menu by contract with CalPERS and adopts those benefits through
local ordinance. CalPERS issues publicly available reports that include a full description of the pension
plans regarding benefit provisions, assumptions, and membership information that can be found on the
CalPERS website at www.calpers.ca.gov.

Substantially all permanent Commission employees were eligible to participate in the Plan. Benefits
vest after five years of service. Commission employees may retire at or after age 50 with five years of
credited service and are entitled to an annual retirement benefit, payable monthly for life. The Plan is
based on a 2.5 percent at age 55 formula allowing employees retiring at age 55 with a minimum of five
years of service to receive a benefit of 2.5 percent of their yearly salary (based on the average of the
highest 36 consecutive months of service) multiplied by their number of years of service. Employees
who retire earlier than age 55 receive less than 2.5 percent for each year of service. The Plan also
provides death benefits. These benefit provisions and all other requirements are established by state
statute.

Contributions
For the year ended June 30, 2018, the Commission’s actuarial determined contributions were $0.

Section 20814(c) of the California Public Employees’ Retirement Law requires that the employer
contribution rates for all public employees be determined on an annual basis by the actuary and shall be
effective on the July 1 following notice of a change in rate. The actuarially determined rate is the
estimated amount necessary to finance the costs of benefits earned by public employees during the year,
with an additional amount to finance any unfunded accrued liability.

Pension Liabilities, Pension Expense, and Deferred Outflows of Resources and Deferred Inflows of
Resources Related to Pensions

At June 30, 2018, the Commission reported a liability of $3.22 million for its proportionate share of the
net pension liability in accordance with the parameters of GASB 68. The net pension liability was
measured as of June 30, 2017, and the total pension liability used to calculate the net pension liability
was determined by an actuarial valuation as of June 30, 2016, projected forward to the measurement
date taking into account any significant changes between the valuation date and the measurement date.
At June 30, 2018, the Commission’s proportionate share was 0.03250%.
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Note 6. Retirement Pension Plan (Continued)

For the year ended June 30, 2018, the Commission recognized pension expense of $411,942. Pension
expense represents the change in the net pension liability during the measurement period, adjusted for
actual contributions and the deferred recognition of changes in investment gain/loss, actuarial gain/loss,
actuarial assumptions or methods, and plan benefits. At June 30, 2018, the Commission reported
deferred outflows of resources and deferred inflows of resources related to pensions from the following
sources:

Deferred Deferred
Outflows of Inflows of
Resources Resources
Change of assumptions $ 523374 $ 39,908
Difference between expected and actual experience 4218 60,433
Net difference between projected and actual
investment earnings 118,366 -
Differences between employer’s contributions and
proportionate share of contributions - 414,906
Change in employer’s proportion 453,091 166,216
Pension contributions made subsequent to
measurement date 105,270 -
Total $ 1,204,319 $ 681,463

Deferred outflows of resources and deferred inflows of resources above represent the unamortized
portion of changes to net pension liability to be recognized in future periods in a systematic and rational
manner in accordance with GASB 68.

Amounts currently reported as deferred inflows and outflows of resources, other than contributions
related to pension, will be recognized in pension expense as follows:

Deferred (Inflows)/
Year Ended June 30: Outflows of Resources
2019 $ 262,157
2020 148,633
2021 77,072
2022 (70,276)
2023 -
Thereafter -
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Year Ended June 30, 2018

Note 6. Retirement Pension Plan (Continued)

Actuarial Assumptions

Valuation Timing
Measurement Date
Actuarial Cost Method
Inflation

Investment Rate of Return

Projected Salary Increase
Discount Rate

Postretirement Benefit Increase

Mortality Rate Table

Experience Study

June 30, 2016 rolled forward to June 30, 2017

June 30, 2017

Entry Age Normal

2.75%

7.15%, net of pension plan investment expense, including
inflation

Varies depending on age, service, and type of employment
7.15% as of June 30, 2017, net of pension plan, investment and
administrative expense, including inflation

Contract COLA up to 2.75% until Purchasing Power Protection
Allowance Floor on Purchasing Power applies, 2.75% thereafter
Derived using CalPERS’ Membership Data for all Funds. The
table includes 20 years of mortality improvements using Society
of Actuaries Scale BB.

Covers the fiscal years 1997 to 2011, including updates to salary

increase, mortality and retirement rates.

Change in Assumptions

The discount rate was changed from 7.65% to 7.15%.
Discount Rate

The long-term expected rate of return on pension plan investments (7.15%, net of investment expenses)
was determined using a building block method in which best estimate ranges of expected future real
rates of return (expected returns, net of pension plan investment expense and inflation) are developed
for each major asset class.

In determining the long-term expected rate of return, CalPERS took into account both short-term and
long-term market return expectations as well as the expected pension fund cash flows. Using historical
returns of all funds’ asset classes, expected compound (geometric) returns were calculated over the short
term (first 10 years) and the long term (11-60 years) using a building block approach. Using the expected
nominal returns for both short term and long term, the present value of benefits was calculated. The
expected rate of return was set by calculating the single equivalent expected return that arrived at the
same present value of benefits of cash flows as the one calculated using both short- and long-term
returns.

The expected rate of return was then set equivalent to the single equivalent rate calculated above and
rounded to the nearest one quarter of one percent.
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Note 6. Retirement Pension Plan (Continued)

The table below reflects the long term expected real rate of return by asset class. The rate of return was
calculated using the capital market assumptions applied to determine the discount rate and asset
allocation.

Real Return Real Return
Asset Class Years 1 — 10 Years 11+(2)
Global Equity 4.90% 5.38%
Fixed Income 0.80% 2.27%
Inflation Assets 0.60% 1.39%
Private Equity 6.60% 6.63%
Real Estate 2.80% 5.21%
Infrastructure and Forestland 3.90% 5.36%
Liquidity -0.40% -0.90%

(1)  An expected inflation rate of 2.5% used for this period.
(2)  An expected inflation rate of 3.0% used for this period.

Sensitivity of the Commission’s Proportionate Share of the Net Pension Liability to Changes in the
Discount Rate

The following represents the Commission’s proportionate share of the net pension liability/(asset)
calculated using the discount rate of 7.15%, as well as what the Commission’s proportionate share of
the net pension liability/(asset) would be if it were calculated using a discount rate that is 1-percentage
point lower (6.15%) or 1-percentage point higher (8.15%) than the current rate:

1% Decrease Discount Rate 1% Increase
(6.15%) (7.15%) (8.15%)
Net Pension Liability $ 4,948,649 $ 3,223,459 $ 1,794,626

Pension Plan Fiduciary Net Position

Detailed information about CalPERS fiduciary net position as of June 30, 2018 is available in a
separately issued CalPERS financial report, which can be found at www.calpers.ca.gov.
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Note 7. Postemployment Benefits Other Than Pensions

Plan Description

The Commission administers a single-employer defined benefit healthcare plan (the Retiree Health
Plan). The plan provides lifetime healthcare insurance for retirees and their spouses through the
Commission’s group health insurance plan, which covers both active and retired members. To become
eligible to retire, an employee must have been 50 years of age or higher with five or more years vested
in CalPERS (see Note 6). The Retiree Health Plan does not issue a publicly available financial report.
Effective July 29, 2013, all active employees were removed from the plan. Pursuant to the Commission-
USC Lease, the healthcare insurance premiums for all retired participants paid by the Commission shall
be reimbursed by USC.

Benefits Provided

Retirees can choose among several options: PPO, HMO or EPO. All options permit Medicare
supplement plans for those members eligible for Medicare. Health plans offered, covered benefits,
monthly rates and co-payments are determined by the CalPERS Board, which reviews health plan
contracts annually. The following HMO and PPO plans were available during fiscal years 2011 to 2018:

e Basic HMO Plans (Blue Shield Access+, Blue Shield Net Value or Kaiser Permanente).
e Basic PPO Plans (PERS Select, PERS Choice and PERS Care).

The costs of these medical plans are shared by the Commission and the retiree. The Commission pays
the costs of these medical plans as they are incurred. As of June 30, 2018, no assets are accumulated in
a trust that meets the criteria in paragraph 4 of GASB Statement 75. Effective February 2012, the
Commission established contribution rates of 78 percent for employer and 22 percent for employee.
Prior to this, the employer/employee contribution rates varied slightly depending upon the specific plan
chosen by the retiree.

Emplovyees Covered

As of the June 30, 2018, the Commission had 20 former employees receiving benefits of the plan.
There are no active employees.

Contributions

For the fiscal year ended June 30, 2018, the Commission contributed $156,493 to the plan.
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Note 7. Postemployment Benefits Other Than Pensions (Continued)

Total Other Postemployment Benefit (OPEB) Liability

At June 30, 2018, the Commission reported a total OPEB liability of $4.28 million. The total OPEB
liability was measured using the alternative measurement method as of June 30, 2017, rolled forward to

June 30, 2018.

Actuarial Methods and Assumptions

Measurement Date
Valuation Timing
Actuarial Cost Method
Inflation

Salary Increases
Mortality

Discount Rate
Healthcare Cost Trend
Rates

June 30, 2017

June 30, 2017 rolled forward to June 30, 2018

Entry Age Normal

No inflation assumption was made

No long-term payroll growth assumption was made

Based on 1994 Group Annuity Mortality Table, Combined Rates

3.5%

The expected rate of increase in healthcare insurance premiums was based on
projections of the Office of the Actuary at the Centers for Medicare & Medicaid
Services. A rate of 10 percent initially, reduced to an ultimate rate of 5 percent
after 10 years, was used.

Changes in the Total OPEB Liability

The changes in the total OPEB liability for the plan are as follows:

Total OPEB
Liability

Balance at June 30, 2017 $ 3,718,130
Changes recognized for the measurement period:

Interest 121,805
Changes in assumptions 528,623
Actuarial experience 67,557
Benefit payments (156,493)
Net Changes 561,492
Balance at June 30, 2018 $ 4,279,622

Changes in assumptions re

flect a change in the discount rate from 4.5% to 3.5%.
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Note 7. Postemployment Benefits Other Than Pensions (Continued)
Discount Rate

The discount rate used to measure the total OPEB liability was 3.50%, the municipal bond rate as of
June 30, 2017.

Sensitivity of the Total OPEB Liability to Changes in the Discount Rate

The following represents the Commission’s total OPEB liability calculated using the discount rate of
3.5%, as well as what the Commission’s total liability would be if it were calculated using a discount
rate that is 1-percentage point lower (2.5%) or 1-percentage point higher (4.5%) than the current rate:

1% Decrease Discount Rate 1% Increase
(2.5%) (3.5%) (4.5%)
Net OPEB Liability $ 4,934,280 $ 4,279,622 $ 3,750,999

Sensitivity of the Total OPEB Liability to Changes in the Healthcare Cost Trend Rates

The following represents the Commission’s total OPEB liability, as well as what the Commission’s total
OPEB liability would be if it were calculated using healthcare cost trend rates that are 1-percentage
point lower or 1-percentage point higher than the current healthcare cost trend rates:

1% Current Trend 1%
Decrease Rate Increase
Net OPEB Liability $ 3,760,783 $ 4,279,622 $ 4,907,121

Deferred Outflows of Resources and Deferred Inflows of Resources Related to OPEB

The Commission had no deferred outflows or inflows of resources related to OPEB as the
Commission’s OPEB does not have a fiduciary net position and pays the OPEB costs as they are
incurred.
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Note 8. Leases

Leases: The Coliseum and Sports Arena ground leases were extended by the Commission on
September 3, 2003 to continue through December 31, 2054. The rental terms for the extended leases
were agreed to by the Commission and State on February 13, 2008. The aggregate annual rent is $1.00
million, beginning January 1, 2008 and ending December 31, 2015, and $1.30 million, beginning
January 1, 2016 and ending December 31, 2054, with the annual amount beginning January 1, 2017 to
be adjusted according to the U.S. Consumer Price Index.

In addition to the annual base rents, the Commission must pay to the State a portion of any revenue
received for naming rights of the Coliseum and the Sports Arena in the amounts of 3.125 percent and
1.875 percent, respectively. The naming rights provision of the agreement also applies to the
Commission-USC lease. For the year ended June 30, 2018, the Commission did not receive any revenue
related to naming rights of the Coliseum or the Sports Arena.

Future minimum payments under these agreements at June 30, 2018 are as follows:

Years Ending June 30, Amount
2019 $ 1,300,000
2020 1,300,000
2021 1,300,000
2022 1,300,000
2023 1,300,000
2024-2028 6,500,000
2029-2033 6,500,000
2034-2038 6,500,000
2039-2043 6,500,000
2044-2048 6,500,000
2049-2053 6,500,000
2054 1,300,000
$ 46,800,000

Rent expense is recorded on a straight-line basis over the lease term. Amounts expensed in excess of
amounts paid are recorded as straight-line rent accrual liability. Rent expense for the year ended June 30,
2018 was $1.25 million, which is related to the Coliseum and Sports Arena rent expense. As a result,
the Commission has recorded straight-line rent accrual liability of $1.86 million as of June 30, 2018.
Because USC pays the rent directly to the State, the Commission also recognizes rental revenue on a
straight-line basis and recognized a deferred rent receivable of $640,737 for the difference between the
actual payments and the amount recognized as revenue.
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Note 8. Leases (Continued)

Sublease with primary tenant: The Commission has a sublease agreement with USC (the
Commission-USC lease) for the use of the Coliseum and the property of the former Sports Arena. On
July 25, 2013, the Commission and USC executed an amended and restated sublease that transferred the
operations and all associated assets of both the Coliseum and the property of the former Sports Arena to
USC on July 29, 2013 through at least July 29, 2033, with options for USC to extend through
December 31, 2054 (the date that the current lease with the State of California expires). The sublease
also provides USC with full control of the property located at 3843 S. Grand Avenue (the Freeway Sign).
In addition, USC has obtained first rights to negotiate with the State of California to extend the sublease
beyond December 31, 2054. In return, USC is required to make specific capital improvements to the
Coliseum, which are estimated to cost in excess of $70 million, to be completed before the Centennial
Anniversary of the Coliseum on July 29, 2023.

Additional terms of the Commission-USC Lease require USC to: (1) make future rent payments to the
State on behalf of the Commission; (2) reimburse the Commission for retiree healthcare premiums
(estimated $25,000 per month); (3) extend the term on the Coliseum Note Payable to USC (see Notes 5
and 8); and (4) provide the Commission with a monthly allowance for the Commission’s general
operating expenses. The total monthly allowance, including a trademark royalty of $1,667, was set at
$29,724 for the fiscal year ended June 30, 2018; however, future amounts will be determined based on
annual budget deliberations with USC.

Note 9. Related Party Transactions

The Commission’s cash and investments are pooled and invested by the County Treasurer and Tax
Collector (TTC). For the years ended June 30, 2018 and 2017, interest income amounted to $13,589
and $5,675, respectively. Interest receivable was $6,301 as of June 30, 2018 and $2,216 as of June 30,
2017. The County maintains the books and records of the Commission. The County also provides other
administrative and support services. Total fees paid to the County for these services amounted to
$308,193 and $356,764 for the years ended June 30, 2018 and 2017, respectively. As of June 30, 2018,
and 2017, the total payable to the County was $105,046 and $0, respectively.

Note 10. Commitments and Contingencies

Collective bargaining agreements: The Coliseum Commission had two collective bargaining
agreements (CBA), and the Association had one CBA. The Coliseum Commission CBAs were with
IATSE Local 33 and Service Employees International Union (SEIU) Local 1877. The IATSE CBA
covered employees who performed load-in, setting, striking, load-out operating and preventive
maintenance duties in connection with performance-related equipment for those events presented or
otherwise sponsored and produced by the Commission or tenants. The IATSE CBA expired on July 28,
2013. The SEIU CBA was effective January 1, 2013 through December 31, 2013 and was automatically
terminated upon management transfer of the facilities to USC on July 28, 2013. The SEIU CBA covers
employees who performed janitorial services. The Association CBA with the Unite Here Local 11 union
was extended through June 30, 2013 and continued on a month-to-month basis until July 28, 2013, at
which time it was terminated. The CBA with Unite Here covered most food service employees.
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Note 10. Commitments and Contingencies (Continued)

On October 30, 2013, the Commission received a claim letter from the IATSE Pension Trust alleging
that the Coliseum Commission/Association has incurred a pension trust fund withdrawal liability of
$378,102. The balance of the accrued liability for $64,983 has been recorded in other long-term
liabilities in the statement of net position (deficit).

Legal Commitments: The Commission entered into an agreement with legal counsel to pay fees
incurred totaling approximately $175,000 over a three-year period, without interest, beginning in June
2017. As of June 30, 2018, the Commission completed payments to legal counsel.

The Commission is exposed to claims encountered in the normal course of business. In the opinion of

management, the resolution of these matters, except as discussed above, will be covered by insurance
and/or will not have a material adverse effect on the Commission’s net position or results of operations.

Note 11. Subsequent Events

Subsequent events have been evaluated through February 11, 2019, which is the date the financial
statements were available to be issued.
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Schedule of Net Pension Liability and Related Ratios
Year Ended June 30, 2018

6/30/2017 6/30/2016 6/30/2015 6/30/2014
Pension Plan's fiduciary net position as a
percentage of total pension liability 73.31% 74.60% 78.40% 89.68%
Commission's proportionate share of the
collective net pension liability 3,223,459 2,756,150 2,013,993 1,233,288
Commission's proportionate share as a
percentage of the collective net pension liability 0.03250% 0.03185% 0.02934% 0.01982%
Covered Employee Payroll o $0 $0 $0 $0
collective net pension liability as a percentage of
covered payroll N/A N/A N/A N/A
Schedule of Commission's Pension Plan Contributions
Year Ended June 30, 2018

2018 2017 2016 2015

Actuarially Determined Contributions (ADC) $ 105,270 $ 72,974 $ 46,405 $ 14,851
Less: Contributions in relation to the ADC $ 105,270 $ 72,974 $ 46,405 $ 14,851
Contribution Deficiency (Excess) $0 $0 $0 $0
Covered Employee Payroll o $0 $0 $0 $0
Contributions as a percentage of covered payroll N/A N/A N/A N/A

(1) The Commission no longer has any employees.
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Los Angeles Memorial Coliseum Commission

Required Supplementary Information

Schedule of Changes in the Net OPEB Liability and Related Ratios
For the Year ended June 30, 2018

Last Ten Years*

Total OPEB Liability

Service Cost

Interest on the total OPEB liability

Actual and expected experience difference

Changes in assumptions

Changes in benefit terms

Benefit payments
Net change in total OPEB liability
Total OPEB liability - beginning
Total OPEB liability - ending (a)

Plan Fiduciary Net Position

Contributions - employer

Benefit payments
Net change in plan fiduciary net position
Plan fiduciary net position - beginning
Plan fiduciary net position - ending (b)

Net OPEB liability - ending (a) - (b)

Plan Fiduciary Net Position as a percentage
of the Total OPEB Liability

Covered - employee payroll

Net OPEB Liability as a percentage
of covered-employee payroll

Notes to Schedule:

2018

121,805
67,557
528,623

(156,493)

561,492
3,718,130

4,279,622

156,493
(156,493)

4,279,622

0.00%

N/A

0.00%

Changes in assumptions: The discount rate was changed from 4.5 percent to 3.5 percent for the

measurement period ended June 30, 2018.

No assets are accumulated in a trust that meets the criteria in paragraph 4 of GASB 75, to pay related

benefits.

*Historical information is required only for measurement periods for which GASB 75 is applicable. Future

years' information will be displayed up to ten years as information becomes available.
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U.S. BANK TOWER
633 WEST 5TH STREET, SUITE 3320
LOS ANGELES, CA 90071
(213) 736-6664 TELEPHONE
(213) 736-6692 FAX
www.simpsonandsimpsoncpas.com

SIMPSON & SIMPSON

CERTIFIED PUBLIC ACCOUNTANTS

FOUNDING PARTNERS
BRAINARD C. SIMPSON, CPA
MELBA W. SIMPSON, CPA

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT ON INTERNAL CONTROL OVER
FINANCIAL REPORTING AND ON COMPLIANCE AND OTHER MATTERS
BASED ON AN AUDIT OF FINANCIAL STATEMENTS PERFORMED
IN ACCORDANCE WITH GOVERNMENT AUDITING STANDARDS

To the Honorable Members
Los Angeles Memorial Coliseum Commission
Los Angeles, California

We have audited, in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of
America and the standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government Auditing Standards
issued by the Comptroller General of the United States, the financial statements of the Los Angeles
Memorial Coliseum Commission (Commission) as of and for the year ended June 30, 2018, and the
related notes to the basic financial statements, which collectively comprise the Commission’s basic
financial statements and have issued our report thereon dated February 11, 2019.

Internal Control over Financial Reporting

In planning and performing our audit of the financial statements, we considered the Commission’s
internal control over financial reporting (internal control) to determine the audit procedures that are
appropriate in the circumstances for the purpose of expressing our opinion on the financial statements,
but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the Commission’s internal
control. Accordingly, we do not express an opinion on the effectiveness of the Commission’s internal
control.

A deficiency in internal control exists when the design or operation of a control does not allow
management or employees in the normal course of performing their assigned functions, to prevent, or
detect and correct misstatements on a timely basis. A material weakness is a deficiency, or a
combination of deficiencies, in internal control, such that there is a reasonable possibility that a material
misstatement of the entity’s financial statements will not be prevented, or detected and corrected on a
timely basis. A significant deficiency is a deficiency, or a combination of deficiencies, in internal
control that is less severe than a material weakness, yet important enough to merit attention by those
charged with governance.

Our consideration of internal control was for the limited purpose described in the first paragraph of this
section and was not designed to identify all deficiencies in internal control that might be material
weaknesses or significant deficiencies. Given these limitations, during our audit we did not identify
any deficiencies in internal control that we consider to be material weaknesses. However, material
weaknesses may exist that have not been identified.

sM

CPA
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Compliance and Other Matters

As part of obtaining reasonable assurance about whether the Commission’s financial statements are
free from material misstatement, we performed tests of its compliance with certain provisions of laws,
regulations, contracts, and grant agreements, noncompliance with which could have a direct and
material effect on the determination of financial statement amounts. However, providing an opinion
on compliance with those provisions was not an objective of our audit and, accordingly, we do not
express such an opinion. The results of our tests disclosed no instances of noncompliance or other
matters that are required to be reported under Government Auditing Standards.

Purpose of this Report

The purpose of this report is solely to describe the scope of our testing of internal control and
compliance and the results of that testing, and not to provide an opinion on the effectiveness of the
entity’s internal control or on compliance. This report is an integral part of an audit performed in
accordance with Government Auditing Standards in considering the Commission’s internal control and
compliance. Accordingly, this communication is not suitable for any other purpose.

Wﬁ%ﬁﬂ%ﬁ

Los Angeles, California
February 11, 2019
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COMMISSION STAFF

AL NAIPO
CHIEF ADMINISTRATIVE OFFICER
SECRETARY

EX-OFFICIO MEMBERS
STATE SENATOR
HOLLY J. MITCHELL

ASSEMBLYMEMBER
REGINALD JONES-SAWYER

LOS ANGELES MEMORIAL COLISEUM COMMISSION
3911 South Figueroa Street, Los Angeles, CA 90037

SITE OF 1932 AND 1984
OLYMPICS ATHLETICS COMPETITION
OPENING & CLOSING CEREMONIES

AGENDA ITEM # 8

COMMISSION MEMBERS

COUNTY OF LOS ANGELES
JANICE HAHN, PRESIDENT

MARK RIDLEY-THOMAS
ANITA L. DEFRANTZ (Alternate)

CITY OF LOS ANGELES

SOLOMON RIVERA
VICE PRESIDENT

CURREN D. PRICE, JR.

STATE OF CALIFORNIA
ROSALIND WYMAN

MARK E. PULIDO (Alternate)

LOS ANGELES MEMORIAL COLISEUM GENERAL MANAGER’S REPORT

DAVID GALAVIZ

Proposed Action:

RECEIVE and FILE the Los Angeles Memorial Coliseum General Manager's Report from David

Galaviz, USC Associate Vice President for Government Community Relations.

Overview:

USC’s Los Angeles Memorial Coliseum General Manager's Report was received by the

Commission’s Chief Administrative Officer from Coliseum General Manager Joe Furin.

The report summarizes event operations and planned and in-progress projects (for the General
Manager’s Report (Attachment 8.1).

The Commission also received USC’s annual report for the period July 1, 2018 — December 31,

2018 (Attachment 8.2)



ATTACHMENT 8.1

LOS ANGELES MEMORI

COLISEUM

University of Southern California
Coliseum Management Report
Mar. 15 - Apr. 15, 2019

1. EVENT OPERATIONS

A. Completed Coliseum Events
i. Hot Import Nights Car Show, March 30
ii. Make-A-Wish Walk, April 6

B. Upcoming Large Events
i. Cinco De Mayo, May 5
ii. CHLA Walk, June 29
iili. Lane 8 Concert, June 29
iv. LA Rams vs Denver Broncos, Aug. 24
v. USC Football vs Fresno State, Aug. 31
vi. USC Football vs Stanford, Sept. 7
vii. LA Rams vs New Orleans Saints, Sept. 15
viii. USC Football vs Utah, Sept. 20
ix. LA Rams vs Tampa Bay Buccaneers, Sept. 29
x. LA Rams vs San Francisco 49ers, Oct. 13
xi. USC Football vs Arizona, Oct. 19
xii. USC Football vs Oregon, Nov. 2
xiii. LA Rams vs Chicago Bears, Nov. 17
xiv. USC Football vs UCLA, Nov. 23
xv. LA Rams vs Baltimore Ravens, Nov. 25 (Monday night)
xvi. LA Rams vs Seattle Seahawks, Dec. 8
xvii. LA Rams vs Arizona Cardinals, Dec. 29

2. COLISEUM PROJECTS

A. Coliseum Renovation Project — Please See Exhibit A
B. Site Upgrades and Improvements

i. Refresh of Coliseum Concession Stands - Please see Exhibit B

3911 South Figueroa Street, Los Angeles, CA 90037 ¢ Tel: 213 747 7111 ¢ Fax: 213 764 9346
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C. Infrastructure and Maintenance Projects

i. Repair AC unit in South Office
ii. Hardware/window repair (doorknobs, broken locks, windows, etc.)
iii. Pressure wash concrete stains
iv. Electrical and plumbing preventative maintenance
v. Fleet maintenance
vi. Field equipment maintenance

Note: A complete, itemized list of capital improvement items and associated costs for the fiscal year
will be provided in the Annual Report due September 30, 2019.

3. OTHERITEMS

A. Semi-Annual Report. In accordance with Section 14.1 of the Lease, the University
provided the Commission the annual report for the reporting period of July 1, 2018
to Dec. 31, 2018 on March 30. Highlights include:

i. The Coliseum hosted 47 events during the reporting period with 1,012,258

in total attendance.
ii. Capital expenditures during the reporting period was $54,210,251.

END OF REPORT



ATTACHMENT A

Coliseum Renovation Project Update

April 25, 2019







PROJECT SUMMARY

Renovation Project approved by the Commission July 28, 2016
Work commenced - January 8, 2018

o Project Duration — 19 Months

o Anticipated Completion Date — August 1, 2019

During construction, the Coliseum will host football games and other events on a
limited basis, including the eight Commission designated Public Interest Events

A community hotline number (213-798-4828) has been established for local
residents to express concerns or questions

Architect — DLR Group

General Contractor — Hathaway Dinwiddie Hunt




CONSTRUCTION UPDATE
Milestones:

Tower enclosed and protected from
elements (interior work unaffected by
weather).

Replacement of seats — 30,000
installed to date.

Mural restoration ongoing.
Stadium WiFi install ongoing.

Bowl repairs, including painting,
ongoing.

Basement, Concessions, Founders
level & Press Boxes — 70% completed

#)4Blue.




LABOR UPDATE

Total Labor Force to Date - 2,262

Total Labor Hours to Date — 707,974
Subcontractors Hired to Date - 47
Subcontractors On Site Currently — 42

Local Hire Goal - 30%
Local Hire Goal Achieved to Date - 64%
Local Hire Within 5 Mile Radius - 285 (18%)
Local Hire Within L.A. County — 1,379 (62%)
Local Hire Minus 5 Mile Radius - 294 (13%)
Disadvantaged Local Workers — Goal is 10% 152 (14%)

Note — Percentages reflect cumulative for Project




LOCAL HIRE ACCOMPLISHMENTS

«  Ongoing engagement with community-based organizations:

Anti Recidivism Coalition (ARC)...
LA Trade Tech College

2" Call

LA Watts Work Source Center

LA Urban League

WINTER

LA Dept. of Probations

Dept. of Probations

South LA Clergy

To date - Local Apprentices have been sponsored into local unions/ work onsite.

Hathaway Dinwiddie awarded 2 scholarships of $5,000 each to Anti Recidivism Coalition
and 2" Call to assist with local workers identification, boots & hard hat purchases, plus
union registration fees




Community Engagement with Diverse Business Enterprise

Organizations
) i CIh o
ULS. Veteran [ T / Women's
Business | IN 4 Business Enterprse
Alliance INDUSTRY Iosangeles Councl
Minority Business Development Agency — LA National Assoc. of Minority Contractors in LA
City Councilman Curren Price and Latin Business Association

County Supervisor Mark Ridley-Thomas

Women Business Enterprise Network
City of LA Business Assistance Virtual Network

So. Calif. Minority Supplier Diversity Council
USC Small Business Diversity Office

Transportation Business Advisory Council
LA Trade Tech Work Source Center

LA Business Council




SPOTTED ON THE JOB:
LOCAL HIRING INITIATIVE

Victor Calderon Ricardo Martinez Antonio Reyna
Journeyman Painter 6™ Period Apprentice Journeyman Painter
4 Years Experience IronWorker 10 Years Experience




4

"
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LTI,
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Dinwiddie THE GREATEST STADIUM IN THE WORLD
COM HUNT




ATTACHMENT B

Refresh of the Coliseum Concession Stands




EXISTING STREET LEVEL CONCESSION STAND
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PROPOSED STREET LEVEL CONCESSION STAND

PROPOSED



EXISTING UPPER LEVEL CONCESSION STAND
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ATTACHMENT 8.2

Via Electronic Mail

March 30, 2019

Mr. Al Naipo
Chief Administrative Officer
Los Angeles Memorial Coliseum Commission

) 3911 S. Figueroa Street
103 ABGELLS U1 MORIAL Los Angeles, CA 90037

COLISEUM anaipo@bos.lacounty.gov

1L South Figueroa Street

Los Angeles. CA 90037 Dear Al,
23747 7000
www dacoliseum.com In accordance with Section 14.1 of the Second Amendment to the Lease and

Agreement between the Commission and USC (Lease), please find attached
annual report for the period July 1, 2018 through December 31, 2018. The annual
report includes the following information:

1) Completed and planned events

2) Capital repair or improvement projects either underway or proposed in
the following twelve-month period

3) Operating receipts, operating expenses, and capital improvement and
repair cost reports in furtherance of the provisions of Section 4.3
(Cumulative Calculated Amount).

The following provides a summary overview of each section of the report.

Summary of completed and planned events (page 1)

Completed and Planned Events (pages 2 — 6)
For the period July 1, 2018 through December 31, 2018, there were 47 total

completed event days at the Coliseum.

The total attendance during the reporting period is 1,012,258. Those events that
achieved the highest levels of attendance were NFL Rams football home games,
USC football home games, and international soccer matches.

In addition, there were 3 total community/religious event days including the 4™ of
July Festival.

Due to the ongoing construction activity at the Coliseum there are a limited
number of planned events for the reminder of the fiscal year. There are currently
21 planned event days for the period January 1, 2019 through June 30, 2019.
Notable planned events include:

¢ Rams NFL Playoff Game, January 12

e Make a Wish Walk, April 6

Capital Repair or Improvement Projects (page 7)

For the reporting period, $54,210,251 was spent on capital improvement projects.
These projects are Coliseum related upgrades and includes the major Coliseum
renovation project that began January 2018,

Projects that meet the criteria of Schedule 11 projects are listed, and in addition,
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Page 2 of 2 those projects considered potential Schedule 11 (Category 2) replacement
projects are noted [Lease Section 11.1(b)].

Operating Receipts, Operating Expenses, and Capital Improvements (page 8)
In accordance with Section 4.3 of the Lease, the Cumulative Calculated Amount
(CCA) elements for the semi-annual reporting period are as follows:

Operating Receipts $ 23,659,374

Less: Offsetting Items $(19,063,701)
Less: Capital Improvement Items $(54.210,251)
Total Income/(Loss) $(49,614,578)

The amounts referenced above are for the current reporting period only. The
CCA totals shown on page 8 is for the period July 29, 2013 to December 31,
2018.

Please let us know if you have any questions on the information provided.

Sincerely,
- :
h}. P B
— ~Joe Furin

General Manager, Los Angeles Memorial Coliseum

Cec: Dan Stimmiler, Vice President, Auxiliary Services and
COO of the Los Angeles Memorial Coliseum
Anjeanette Arakawa, Director of Finance, Los Angeles Memorial
Coliseum
Matt Curran, Director, Trademarks and Contract Compliance



LAMC EVENT DAYS ATTACHMENT 8.2

Summary
Completed | | Planned
Coliseum Jul 1, 2018 - Dec 31, 2018 Jan 1, 2019 - Jun 30, 2019
Athletic Events 20 1
Concerts/Rehearsals 0 1
Community/Religious 3 7
Comercial/Film Locations 3 1
Other 21 11
Coliseum Total 47 21

Commission Summary

USC State Report PE 123118 Page No. 1 of 8 Final 03/27/19
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LAMC EVENT RECAP July 1, 2018 - December 31, 2018

Summary
Event Days

LA MEMORIAL COLISEUM Month Summary Attendance
1 ATHLETIC EVENTS 20 962,680

2 CONCERTS/REHEARSALS 0 0

3 COMMUNITY/RELIGIOUS 3 25,000

4 COMMERCIAL/FILM LOCATIONS 3 0

5 OTHER 21 24,578
Coliseum Total: 47 1,012,258

Completed July 1 - Dec 31 2018
USC State Report PE 123118 Page No. 2 of 8 Final 03/27/19



LAMC EVENT RECAP July 1, 2018 - December 31, 2018

Detail
Event Days Event Days

LA MEMORIAL COLISEUM Month Summary Detail Attendance
1 ATHLETIC EVENTS 20 962,680
Rams vs Raiders Aug 1 54,130
Rams vs Texans Aug 1 32,843
USC vs UNLV Sep 1 50,954
Soccer: Guatemala vs Argentina Sep 2 17,458
Soccer: Club America vs Chivas Sep 2 55,839
Rams vs Cardinals Sep 1 50,535
USC vs Washington Sep 1 45,933
Rams vs Chargers Sep 1 59,524
Rams vs Vikings Sep 1 64,927
USC vs Colorado Oct 1 49,458
USC vs Arizona St Oct 1 40,077
Rams vs Packers Oct 1 69,157
USC vs California Nov 1 49,800
Rams vs Seahawks Nov 1 64,925
Rams vs Chiefs Nov 1 71,525
USC vs Notre Dame Nov 1 52,523
Rams vs Eagles Dec 1 67,911
Rams vs 49ers Dec 1 65,161
2 CONCERTS/REHEARSALS 0 0
3 COMMUNITY/RELIGIOUS 3 25,000
4th of July Festival Jul 1 25,000

Coliseum Commission Meeting Jul - Dec
4 COMMERCIAL/FILM LOCATIONS 3 0
USC Bookstore Photo Shoot Aug 1 0
Choura Staff Photo Shoot Dec 1 0
HVMN Lifestyle Still Shoot Dec 1 0
5 OTHER 21 24,578
Dirty Bird BBQ Jul 1 4,010

Completed July 1 - Dec 31 2018
USC State Report PE 123118 Page No. 3 of 8 Final 03/27/19



LAMC EVENT RECAP July 1, 2018 - December 31, 2018

Auxiliary Services Reception
Auxiliary Services Reception
Ralphs Kick-Off Meeting

CSC Job Fair

USC Football Practice

USC Football Practice
Coliseum Topping Ceremony
Ql Leadership Meeting
Olympic Collectibles Tour
Adobe Max Bash

Curacao Foundation Concert
Lion Fight 50

LA Sports Council

USC Recruits

Nike Training Summit

USC Recruits

USC Housing Meeting

USC State Report PE 123118

Jul 1 75
Jul 1 75
Jul 1 56
Aug 1 665
Aug 1 100
Aug 1 175
Aug 1 150
Aug 1 20
Sep 1 60
Oct 4 12,000
Oct 1 6,125
Nov 1 667
Nov 1 25
Dec 1 60
Dec 1 150
Dec 1 90
Dec 1 75
[Coliseum Total: 47 1,012,258|

Completed July 1 - Dec 31 2018
Page No. 4 of 8

Final 03/27/19



LAMC PLANNED EVENTS January 1, 2019 - June 30, 2019

Summary
Event Days

LA MEMORIAL COLISEUM Month Summary Attendance
1 ATHLETIC EVENTS 1 0

2 CONCERTS/REHEARSALS 1 0

3 COMMUNITY/RELIGIOUS 7 0

4 COMMERCIAL/FILM LOCATIONS 1 0

5 OTHER 11 0
[Coliseum Subtotal: 21 0

Planned Jan 1 - Jun 30 2019
USC State Report PE 123118 Page No. 5 of 8 Final 03/27/19



LAMC PLANNED EVENTS January 1, 2019 - June 30, 2019
Detail

Event Days Event Days

LA MEMORIAL COLISEUM Summary Detail Attendance

1 ATHLETIC EVENTS 1 0

Rams vs Cowboys (Playoff) Jan 1 TBD

2 CONCERTS/REHEARSALS 1 0

Lane 8 Concert 1 TBD

3 COMMUNITY/RELIGIOUS 7 0

Make A Wish Walk Apr 1 TBD

Coliseum Commission Meeting Jan - Jun 6 TBD

4 COMMERCIAL/FILM LOCATIONS 1 0
Coca Cola Commercial 1

5 OTHER 11 0

PKU Educational Event Feb 1 TBD

Lion Fight 51 Feb 1 TBD

USC Athletics Complimentary Seat Pick Up Mar 5 TBD

NASPA Campus Tour Mar 1 TBD

Global Car Show Tour Mar 1 TBD

Cinco de Mayo Festival May 1 TBD

Children's Hospital L.A. Walk and Play Event  Jun 1 TBD

[Coliseum Subtotal: 21 of

Planned Jan 1 - Jun 30 2019
USC State Report PE 123118 Page No. 6 of 8 Final 03/27/19



UNIVERSITY OF SOUTHERN CALIFORNIA

LOS ANGELES MEMORIAL COLISEUM

Capital Repair and Improvement Projects

For the Period July 1, 2018 through December 31, 2018

Proposed
Description FY19 FY19 Venue Status Date Schedule 11 Project
Underway as of December 31, 2018

Coliseum North/South Office Renovation $293,578 $102,470 COL  InPlanning Fall 2018 Potential Category 2 replacement project
Replace water lines $808,741 COL  InProgress Summer 2019 Category 1 (#21 & 23) Selective water supply replacement W/ booster pump
Replace Switch gear assembly $65,000 CcoL  Scheduled Summer 2019 Category 1 (#3) Replace Switchgear Assembly
Replace Lower Switch gear assembly $15,000 COL  Scheduled Summer 2019 Category 2 Group C Locker room related - (#3) replace lower switchgear assembly
New LADWP Sub Station-Initial start $423,300 COL  Scheduled Summer 2019 Category 2 Group C, General electrical upgrade for future Police Bldg. upgrades
TV Compound conduit $393,892 CoL  Completed Summer 2017 Category 1 (#17) Select electrical repairs.
Tower 5KV Feed $61,900 coL  Completed Summer 2018 Category 1 (#17) Select electrical repairs.
Perisytle stone replacement $126,250 COL  InProgress Summer 2019 Category 1 (#7) Exterior Facade - Stone replacement
Police Building Elevator upgrade $115,000 COL  InProgress Spring 2018 Category 2 (#22) Select electrical repairs Phase 1
Upgrade TV Compound w/ building renovation, new Category 1 (#17) Select electrical repairs. Category 2 Group 2, Locker Room Related,
fencing $350,000 coL  Completed Summer 2018 Electrical upgrade for locker room HVAC & Chiller

Category 1 (#17) Select electrical repairs. Category 2 Group 2, Locker Room Related,
Power and transformer for TV Compound $175,000 coL  Completed Summer 2018 Electrical upgrade for locker room HVAC & Chiller
Masonry - Level 1 CMU repairs $13,000 CcoL  Completed Summer 2018 Potential Category 2 replacement project

Category 1 (#3) Select egress and direct signage. Category 1 (#17) Select electrical
Fire, Life Safety - Electrical upgrades for occupancy $270,567 coL  Completed Summer 2018 repairs. Category 1 (#9) Select Lighting repairs.
Fire, Life Safety - Temporary piping for bracing and Category 1 (#4) Select electrical repairs. Category 1 (#22) Select electrical repairs.
occupancy $90,046 COoL  Completed Summer 2018 Category 1 (#24) Select electrical repairs. Category 2 (#4) Select Sprinkler Repairs.
Fire, Life Safety - Plumbing for temporary press boxes $32,040 coL  Completed Summer 2018 Category (#18) Select drainage repairs.
Fire, Life Safety - Man lift support for occupancy
requirements $25,965 CcOL  Completed Summer 2018 Potential Category 2 replacement project
Tower Construction $53,522,781 $86,477,219 coL In Progress  Summer 2019
TOTAL $54,210,251 $89,151,498

Proposed as of December 31, 2018

Significant renovations to the Coliseum facility began in January 2018. The renovation project is scheduled to be completed in August 2019.

USC State Report PE 123118

Cap Imprv 123118
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Los Angeles Memorial Coliseum
Cumulative Calculated Amount

This represents interim reporting for the time period July 1, 2018 through December 31, 2018, in accordance with the

terms of the Second Amendment to Lease and Agr

Memorial Coli

byandb

the Los Ang

Commission and University of Southern California. Certain adjustments and capital entries will occur at year-end closing
and will be reflected in the Lease Year report. Year-end results are anticipated to vary significantly due to the seasonal
nature of Coliseum operations.

definition
reference

z
k]
=)

Amount

1 A Operating Receipts
2 (a) Rental Receipts $2,352,808
3 (b) Commercial Value Equivalent (CVE) of Naming Rights n/a
4 (c) Rental Receipts: NFL Team $3,934,398
5 (d) Filming Revenue $2,600
6 (d) Signage Revenue $735,825
7 (d) Concessions $4,519,417
8 (d) Other Operations Revenue $12,060,266
9 (e) 8% of Ticket Surcharge not spent on CapEx S0
10 Parking Revenue $54,060
11 Add: FMV of Comp tickets >20% of sold tickets n/a
12 Add: receipts for non-Coliseum football home game n/a
13 Add: amount naming CVE exceeds NPV of donated n/a
14 SUB TOTAL REVENUES 23,659,374
15 Excluded Receipts
16 (i) Insurance Proceeds n/a
17 (ii) Condemnation proceeds n/a
18 (iii) Landlord breach payment n/a
19 (iv) Donations n/a
20 (vi) Signage $0

(vii) Ticket Surcharge $1,486,401
21 (viii) Capital Contributions by NFL $0
22 Add: Prior Year Cumulative Operating Receipts Total $80,728,425
23 CUMULATIVE OPERATING RECEIPTS $ 104,387,799
24
25 B Offsetting Items
26 Event Expenses $12,914,955
27 Filming Expenses $749
28 Net Salaries & Benefits $2,023,914
29 District Rent - COL $406,250
30 General/Other Op Ex $3,247,633
31 Utilities $240,768
32 Insurance $45,736
33 Debt Service 30
34 Landlord Operating Costs $183,696
35 SUB TOTAL EXPENSES 19,063,701
36

Offsetting Items excluded by definition S0

37 Add: Prior Year Cumulative Offsetting Items Total $74,583,805
38 CUMULATIVE OFFSETTING ITEMS $ 93,647,506
39
40 C Capital Improvement Items
41 Capital Expenditure and Repairs $54,210,251
42 Capital Expenditure Reserve $0
43 Return on CapEx Balance
44 Add: Prior Year Cumulative Capital Improvements Total $104,895,581
45 CUMULATIVE CAPITAL IMPROVEMENT ITEMS $ 159,105,832
46
47 TOTAL INCOME / (LOSS) A-B-C= $ (148,365,540)
48
49 Total Income Sharing Waterfall
50 5% $0-$2.5M $0
51 10% $2.5M -$5.0M S0
52 15% $5.0M - $7.5M $0
53 20% $7.5M + S0
54 TOTAL CUMULATIVE CALCULATED AMOUNT ("CCA") $ -

USC State Report PE 123118

Page 8 of 8

Final 03/27/19



COMMISSION STAFF

AL NAIPO
CHIEF ADMINISTRATIVE OFFICER
SECRETARY

EX-OFFICIO MEMBERS

STATE SENATOR
HOLLY J. MITCHELL

ASSEMBLYMEMBER
REGINALD JONES-SAWYER

SITE OF 1932 AND 1984
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OPENING & CLOSING CEREMONIES

COMMISSION MEMBERS

COUNTY OF LOS ANGELES
JANICE HAHN, PRESIDENT
MARK RIDLEY-THOMAS
ANITA L. DEFRANTZ (Alternate)

CITY OF LOS ANGELES

SOLOMON RIVERA
VICE PRESIDENT

CURREN D. PRICE, JR.

STATE OF CALIFORNIA
ROSALIND WYMAN

LOS ANGELES MEMORIAL COLISEUM COMMISSION MARK E. PULIDO (Alternate)
3911 South Figueroa Street, Los Angeles, CA 90037

AGENDA ITEM #9
UPDATE ON PUBLIC INTEREST EVENT — WALK FOR WISHES 2019

MARC SAWYER

Proposed Action: RECEIVE and FILE
Overview:

At its October 25, 2018 meeting, the Commission approved a request from Make-A-Wish Greater
Los Angeles to hold its annual Walk for Wishes fundraiser at the Los Angeles Memorial Coliseum
as a public interest event.

The event took place on Saturday, April 6, 2019. (Attachment 9.1)



Celebrating 10,000 Wishes
with 10,000 Steps!

WALK

FOR WISHES.

Make A&-Wish.

EEEEEEEEEEEEEEEEE
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OUR MISSION

Together, we create life-changing
wishes for children with
critical 1llnesses.



About Make-A-Wish Greater LA

Ay

10,000!

Wishes granted in LA
since inception

34

Number of minutes, on
average, that a wish is
granted in the U.S.

=5

336

Wishes granted
in 2018

ri

$11,000

Average Cost of a Wish

(*International travel wishes
are the most expensive)

00o

il

600+

Volunteers who help
achieve our mission

Common wish types



ATTACHMENT 9.1

Walk for Wishes

Saturday, April 6, 2019
Los Angeles Memorial Coliseum

77 MAWGLA's 10,000th wish celebration

17 Over 1,500 walkers, supporters,
volunteers, and Wish Families joined
us for this community celebration

7¢ Each walker knocked out 10,000 steps

lk in honor of 10,000t wish
FOR w.s & ‘ 7 Step activities included: walk route,
e silent disco, sports challenges, family

games, and more!
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2019 Event Summary

77 $185,000 Raised
. (19) Wishes granted!

Raised funds through online
fundraising, pre-walk events and
cause marketing

¢ 1,500 Participants
* 60+ Wish Families
100+ Walk Teams

100+ Volunteers

17 On-Site Media Coverage
KTLA



2019 Walk for Wishes
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LA Sports Teams




Steps Activities




2019 Walk Teams
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Wish Kids!




Thank you!



COMMISSION STAFF

AL NAIPO
CHIEF ADMINISTRATIVE OFFICER
SECRETARY

EX-OFFICIO MEMBERS
STATE SENATOR
HOLLY J. MITCHELL

ASSEMBLYMEMBER
REGINALD JONES-SAWYER

SITE OF 1932 AND 1984
OLYMPICS ATHLETICS COMPETITION
OPENING & CLOSING CEREMONIES

LOS ANGELES MEMORIAL COLISEUM COMMISSION

3911 South Figueroa Street, Los Angeles, CA 90037

AGENDA ITEM # 10

UPDATE FROM LOS ANGELES FOOTBALL CLUB

BENNY TRAN

COMMISSION MEMBERS
COUNTY OF LOS ANGELES

JANICE HAHN
PRESIDENT

MARK RIDLEY-THOMAS
ANITA L. DEFRANTZ (Alternate)

CITY OF LOS ANGELES

SOLOMON RIVERA
VICE PRESIDENT

CURREN D. PRICE, JR.

STATE OF CALIFORNIA
ROSALIND WYMAN

MARK E. PULIDO (Alternate)

Proposed Action:

RECEIVE and FILE the Los Angeles Football Club report for the Banc of California Stadium
presented by LAFC Sr. VP Benny Tran.

Los Angeles Memorial Coliseum Commission

Regular Meeting 04/25/19
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